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EXPLANATORY NOTE
 

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A (the Amendment) amends the Annual Report on Form 10-K (the Annual Report) for the year ended September
30, 2004 of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (the Company) in response to comments received from the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) after
their review of the Company’s 2004 Form 10-K. The following items have been modified in this Amendment pursuant to that comment letter: Item 7
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” (Item 7), Item 9A “Controls and Procedures (Item 9A)” and Item 8
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” (Item 8). The modification of Item 7 adds additional variance explanations regarding accounts receivable and
unbilled receivables accounts. Item 8 adds additional disclosure related to the correction of the Company’s accounting for an equity investment within Note 3.
Additionally, Item 8 adds further elaboration in Note 15 related to the settlement of a lawsuit. Item 9A adds additional elaboration regarding our disclosure
controls and procedures, the investigation by the Company’s audit committee of accounting matters and material weaknesses in our internal controls.
 

Pursuant to Rule 12b-15 under the Securities Act of 1934, the Company is including the entire Items 7 and 9A. The Company has included as exhibits to
this Amendment new certifications of its principal executive officer and principal financial officer and has revised the list of exhibits included in Item 15
accordingly.
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Item 7.    Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
 The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in the
Form 10-K. See “Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”
 
General
 Our electrical contracting business is operated in two segments: (1) commercial and industrial and (2) residential. See Note 10 of “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” for a description of these reportable segments.
 

In response to the SEC’s Release No. 33-8040, “Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting Policies,” we have identified the
accounting principles which we believe are most critical to our reported financial status by considering accounting policies that involve the most complex or
subjective decisions or assessments. We identified our most critical accounting policies to be those related to revenue recognition, the assessment of goodwill
impairment, our allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, the recording of our self-insurance liabilities and our estimation of the valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets. These accounting policies, as well as others, are described in the Note 2 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”
 

We enter into contracts principally on the basis of competitive bids. We frequently negotiate the final terms and prices of those contracts with the customer.
Although the terms of our contracts vary considerably, most are made on either a fixed price or unit price basis in which we agree to do the work for a fixed
amount for the entire project (fixed price) or for units of work performed (unit price). We also perform services on a cost-plus or time and materials basis. We are
generally able to achieve higher margins on fixed price and unit price than on cost-plus contracts. We currently generate, and expect to continue to generate, more
than half of our revenues under fixed price contracts. Our most significant cost drivers are the cost of labor, the cost of materials and the cost of casualty and
health insurance. These costs may vary from the costs we originally estimated. Variations from estimated contract costs along with other risks inherent in
performing fixed price and unit price contracts may result in actual revenue and gross profits or interim projected revenue and gross profits for a project differing
from those we originally estimated and could result in losses on projects. Depending on the size of a particular project, variations from estimated project costs
could have a significant impact on our operating results for any fiscal quarter or year. We believe our exposure to losses on fixed price contracts is limited in
aggregate by the high volume and relatively short duration of the fixed price contracts we undertake. Additionally, we derive a significant amount of our revenues
from new construction and from the southern part of the United States. Downturns in new construction activity in the southern part of the United States could
negatively affect our results.
 

We complete most projects within one year. We frequently provide service and maintenance work under open-ended, unit price master service agreements
which are renewable annually. We recognize revenue on service and time and material work when services are performed. Work performed under a construction
contract generally provides that the customers accept completion of progress to date and compensate us for services rendered measured in terms of units installed,
hours expended or some other measure of progress. Revenues from construction contracts are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method in accordance
with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 81-1 “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain
Production-Type Contracts.” Percentage-of-completion for construction contracts is measured principally by the percentage of costs incurred and accrued to date
for each contract to the estimated total costs for each contract at completion. We generally consider contracts to be substantially complete upon departure from the
work site and acceptance by the customer. Contract costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance, such
as indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation costs. Changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated contract costs and profitability and final
contract settlements may result in revisions to costs and income and the effects of these revisions are recognized in the period in which the revisions are
determined. Provisions for total estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined.
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We evaluate goodwill for potential impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” Included in this evaluation are certain assumptions and estimates to determine the fair values of reporting units such as estimates of future
cash flows, discount rates, as well as assumptions and estimates related to the valuation of other identified intangible assets. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates or significant changes to the market value of our common stock could materially impact our results of operations or financial position.
 

We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts for unknown collection issues in addition to reserves for specific accounts receivable where collection is
considered doubtful. Inherent in the assessment of the allowance for doubtful accounts are certain judgments and estimates including, among others, our
customers’ access to capital, their willingness to pay, general economic conditions, our ongoing relationships and the strength of our claim and associated lien
rights. In addition to these factors, our business and the method of accounting for construction contracts requires the review and analysis of not only the net
receivables, but the amount of billings in excess of costs and costs in excess of billings which is integral to the overall review of collectibility associated with our
billings in total. The analysis management utilizes to assess collectibility of its receivables includes a detailed review of older balances and analysis of days sales
outstanding where we include in the calculation, in addition to accounts receivable balances net of any allowance for doubtful accounts, the level of costs in
excess of billings netted against billings in excess of costs. The net of costs in excess of billings and billings in excess of costs on uncompleted contracts provides
an indication of amounts billed ahead or behind the recognition of revenue on our construction contracts and are key in understanding our ability to control
operational cash flows related to the revenue cycle.
 

We are insured for workers’ compensation, automobile liability, general liability, employment practices and employee-related health care claims, subject to
large deductibles. Our general liability program provides coverage for bodily injury and property damage that is neither expected nor intended. Losses up to the
deductible amounts are accrued based upon our estimates of the liability for claims incurred and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported. The accruals are
derived from actuarial studies, known facts, historical trends and industry averages utilizing the assistance of an actuary to determine the best estimate of the
ultimate expected loss. We believe such accruals to be adequate. However, insurance liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to unknown factors,
including the severity of an injury, the determination of our liability in proportion to other parties, the number of incidents not reported and the effectiveness of
our safety program. Therefore, if actual experience differs from than the assumptions used in the actuarial valuation, adjustments to the reserve may be required
and would be recorded in the period that the experience becomes known.
 

We regularly evaluate valuation allowances established for deferred tax assets for which future realization is uncertain. We perform this evaluation at least
annually at the end of each fiscal year. The estimation of required valuation allowances includes estimates of future taxable income. In assessing the realizability
of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2004, we considered whether it was more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets would not be
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. We consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in
making this assessment. If actual future taxable income differs from our estimates, our results could be affected.
 

During the last three years we have been implementing a three-phase strategy.
 

Phase one, “Back to Basics”, emphasized basic business fundamentals of increasing backlog, controlling costs and generating positive cash flow. Phase
two, “One Company. One Plan.”, focused on processes and systems necessary to integrate various decentralized business units. Phase three, “Continued Growth”,
was designed to expand the businesses internally and via selective acquisitions. Since 2002, when the strategy was developed and implemented we accomplished
a number of our objectives while reducing debt and repurchasing shares of common stock.
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During the summer of 2004 we announced that we would not timely issue our financial results for the third fiscal quarter. Since that time we have diligently
worked to remedy the matters that gave rise to those events. While we have determined that the matters were not widespread, the process and surrounding events
caused us to modify our strategy to take a closer look at the overall operating and capital efficiency of our units to insure an optimal return on the capital invested
in the company.
 

During October 2004 we began a process to strategically review the performance of each of our 49 business units over the last three years. We analyzed the
financial performance of each unit with particular emphasis on the relative consistency of its results, returns on invested capital (unit level working capital and
fixed assets), the required invested capital at each unit including capital costs associated with surety bonding, construction spending and growth trends in each
geographic market, management strength and other factors.
 

We determined that certain businesses did not meet our criteria and have decided to sell or close these units in order to improve overall profitability and
capital efficiency of the company. These units produced revenues and operating losses during 2004 of approximately $289.2 million and $13.1 million,
respectively.
 
Results of Operations
 The following table presents selected historical results of operations of IES and subsidiaries with dollar amounts in thousands. These historical statements
of operations include the results of operations for businesses acquired through purchases beginning on their respective dates of acquisition.
 

   

Year Ended September 30,

 

   

2002

  

2003

  

2004

 
   (restated)   (restated)        
   (In thousands)  
Revenues   $1,474,461  100%  $1,447,763  100% $1,424,100  100%
Cost of services (including depreciation)    1,253,031  85   1,241,330  86   1,250,170  88 
        
Gross profit    221,430  15   206,433  14   173,930  12 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    174,997  12   153,651  10   158,906  11 
Restructuring charges    5,556  —     —    —     —    —   
Goodwill impairment    —    —     —    —     99,798  7 
        
Income (loss) from operations    40,877  3   52,782  4   (84,774) (6)
Interest and other expense, net    (27,405) (2)   (25,768) (2)   (29,006) (2)
        
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle    13,472  1   27,014  2   (113,780) (8)
Provision for income taxes    5,196  —     7,577  1   11,084  1 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax    283,284  19   —    —     —    —   
        
Net income (loss)   $ (275,008) (18)%  $ 19,437  1% $ (124,864) (9)%

        
 
Year ended September 30, 2004 compared to year ended September 30, 2003
 Revenues
 

Revenues   

Percentage of
Total Revenues

  

Percentage
Growth / Decline

 
Year ended September 30,

  

2003

  

2004

  

2004

 
Commercial and Industrial   81%  78% (5)%
Residential   19%  22% 11%
     
Total Company   100%  100% (2)%
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Revenues decreased $23.7 million, or 2%, from $1,447.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2003 to $1,424.1 million for the year ended September 30,
2004. The decrease in total revenues is the result of a $57.5 decrease in commercial and industrial revenues offset by an increase of $33.8 million in residential
revenues. The decline in commercial and industrial revenues is primarily attributable to declines in the commercial and industrial construction market in Texas
and for our traveling companies offset by increases in commercial and industrial revenues from our markets on the East Coast. The increase in residential
revenues is attributable to the strong housing environment resulting from low interest rates and good execution by our residential management where we have
seen increases at all of our subsidiaries focused primarily on residential electrical contracting.
 
Gross Margin
 

   

Segment Gross Margins
as a Percentage of Segment Revenues

 
Year ended September 30,

  

2003

  

2004

 
Commercial and Industrial   13%  10%
Residential   21%  19%
    
Total Company   14%  12%

    
 

Gross profit decreased $32.5 million, or 16% from $206.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2003 to $173.9 million for the year ended September
30, 2004. The decline in commercial and industrial gross profit from $148.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2003, to $114.0 million for the year ended
September 30, 2004, was due to gross profit on a lower revenue base earned year over year of approximately $7.5 million, a decline in gross profit margin at one
subsidiary of $6.0 million, increased costs associated with the procurement of copper wire, steel products and fuel, as well as overall declines in margins as a
result of increased competition in markets we serve. The increase in residential gross profit from $58.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2003, to $59.8
million for the year ended September 30, 2004, was due to gross profit on a higher revenue base earned year over year of approximately $7.1 million, offset by
increased costs associated with the procurement of copper wire, steel products and fuel.
 

Overall gross margin as a percentage of revenues decreased approximately 18% from 14% for the year ended September 30, 2003 to 12% for the year
ended September 30, 2004. Had we earned last year’s gross margin of 14%, gross profit for the year ended September 30, 2004 would have been $199.4 million,
an increase of $25.5 million. The decline in gross margin during the year ended September 30, 2004 was primarily due to increased competition for available
commercial and industrial work, the decline in gross profit margin at one subsidiary of $6.0 million and increased costs associated with the procurement of copper
wire, steel products and fuel.
 
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
 Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $6.2 million, or 4%, from $153.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2003 to $158.9 million
for the year ended September 30, 2004. This increase is due primarily to an $8.0 million charge to settle a lawsuit taken during the fourth quarter ended
September 30, 2004. This increase is also due to increased legal fees of $3.7 million, increased bad debt expense of $1.2 million due to receivable write-offs and
$1.1 million in severance expenses recorded during the year ended September 30, 2004 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2003. These increased
selling general and administrative expenses were offset by approximately $7.8 million of reduced employment related expenses including employee paid medical
insurance, bonuses and commissions and other variable expenses. As a result of these charges, selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of
revenue increased from 10% for the year ended September 30, 2003 to 11% for the year ended September 30, 2004.
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Goodwill Impairment Charge
 During the year ended September 30, 2004, we recorded a charge of $99.8 million related to impairments to the carrying value of goodwill. This charge
was entirely associated with the commercial and industrial segment of our operations. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for further information.
 
Income From Operations
 Income from operations decreased $137.6 million, or 260%, from $52.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2003 to a $84.8 million operating loss for
the year ended September 30, 2004. As a percentage of revenues, income from operations decreased from 4% for the year ended September 30, 2003, to a 6%
operating loss for the year ended September 30, 2004. This decrease in income from operations was primarily attributed to the $99.8 million of goodwill
impairment to the carrying value of goodwill, the accrual of $8.0 million for the settlement of a lawsuit included in selling, general and administrative and the
$32.5 million decline in gross profits earned during the year ended September 30, 2004 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2003. Excluding the impact
of the goodwill impairment charge recorded during the year ended September 30, 2004, income from operations as a percent of revenues decreased from 4% for
the year ended September 30, 2003 to 1% for the year ended September 30, 2004.
 
Interest and Other Expense, net
 Interest and other expense, net increased $3.2 million, or 13%, from $25.8 million in 2003 to $29.0 million in 2004. This increase is primarily due to $5.2
million in costs incurred during the year ended September 30, 2004 associated with the early extinguishment of $75.0 million of high-yield subordinated debt.
This increase was offset by a $3.3 million decrease in interest expense during the year ended September 30, 2004 due to a lower amount of average debt
outstanding during the year ended September 30, 2004 compared to the year ended September 30, 2003, and a shift to lower cost senior secured debt from
subordinated debt during the year ended September 30, 2004.
 
Provision for Income Taxes
 Our effective tax rate decreased from 28% for the year ended September 30, 2003 to negative 10% for the year ended September 30, 2004. The decease is
attributable to a pretax net loss, permanent differences required to be added back for income tax purposes, the impairment of non-deductible goodwill, additional
valuation allowance against certain federal and state deferred tax assets and a change in contingent tax liabilities.
 

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2004, we considered whether it was more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. Our realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in
which these temporary differences become deductible. However, SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” places considerably more weight on historical results
and less weight on future projections when there is negative evidence such as cumulative pretax losses in recent years. We incurred a cumulative pretax loss of
$73.3 for September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004 including goodwill impairment of $99.8 million in the year ended September 30, 2004 and excluding $283.3
million resulting from the adoption of SFAS 142 in the year ended September 30, 2002. In the absence of specific favorable evidence of sufficient weight to offset
the negative evidence of the cumulative pretax loss, we have provided $29.3 million of valuation allowances for certain federal and state deferred tax assets.
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Year ended September 30, 2003 compared to year ended September 30, 2002
 Revenues
 

Revenues   

Percentage of
Total Revenues

  

Percentage
Growth / Decline

 
Year ended September 30,

  

2002

  

2003

  

2003

 
Commercial and Industrial   81%  81% (2)%
Residential   19%  19% (2)%
     
Total Company   100%  100% (2)%

     
 

Revenues decreased $26.7 million, or 2%, from $1,474.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2002 to $1,447.8 million for the year ended September
30, 2003. The decrease in total revenues is the result of $41.6 million in lost revenues on divested or closed companies that were included in revenues for the year
ended September 30, 2002, but not during the year ended September 30, 2003. These lost revenues were partially offset by $32.2 million of revenues from an
acquisition during the year ended September 30, 2003. The decline in commercial and industrial revenues is attributable to $29.4 million decline in
communications work due to market contractions, particularly in California, Colorado, Washington, D.C. and Virginia. The decrease in residential revenues is
attributable to a $36.9 million decline in multi-family residential construction projects, primarily in Colorado and Maryland, offset by a $31.0 million increase in
single-family construction spending. We believe record low interest rates during the last 12-18 months is driving demand for new homes, leading to record levels
of single-family residential construction spending. As families move into their new single-family homes, the demand for multi-family housing has dropped.
 
Gross Margin
 

   

Segment Gross Margins
as a Percentage of Segment Revenues

 
Year ended September 30,

  

2002

  

2003

 
Commercial and Industrial   13%  13%
Residential   22%  21%
    
Total Company   15%  14%

    
 

Gross profit decreased $15.0 million, or 7% from $221.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2002 to $206.4 million for the year ended September 30,
2003. The decline in commercial and industrial gross profit was due to lower revenues earned year over year as discussed and due to a shift in the type of
commercial and industrial work performed during the year ended September 30, 2003. The related service and maintenance work for commercial and industrial
customers, which tends to earn higher gross margins than fixed price contracts, declined $6.0 million in gross profit during the year. This decline was moderated
by a $87.1 million increase in larger project work awarded during the year, particularly industrial contracts in excess of $1 million. These larger projects produce
gross profits but tend to earn lower gross margins as a percentage of revenue due to the competitive bidding procedures in place to be awarded this type of work.
The shift of project work from small projects such as the service and maintenance work to larger projects in excess of $1 million impacted gross profits by
approximately $9.2 million.
 

Overall gross margin as a percentage of revenues decreased approximately 1% from 15% for the year ended September 30, 2002 to 14% for the year ended
September 30, 2003. Had we earned the fiscal 2002 gross margin of 15%, gross profit for the year ended September 30, 2003 would have been $217.2 million, an
increase of $10.1 million. The decline in gross margin during the year ended September 30, 2003 was due to the shift in type of commercial and industrial work
performed and due to the increased competition for available residential work. We believe low interest rates during the last 12-18 months is driving demand for
new homes, leading to record
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levels of single-family residential construction spending. This increased demand for residential construction has increased pricing pressure for available work,
particularly affecting our operating units that perform limited amounts of residential work in addition to their commercial and industrial contract expertise.
 
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
 Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $21.3 million, or 12%, from $175.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2002 to $153.7
million for the year ended September 30, 2003. This decline is due to the organizational restructuring that occurred during the year ended September 30, 2002. In
the last 12 months, we have combined administrative offices and functions, leading to a decline in operating locations from approximately 150 locations to
approximately 134 locations. We also divested or closed non-performing companies, which decreased our selling, general and administrative cost structure by
approximately $7.9 million. Finally, we streamlined our administrative cost structure, yielding savings of $14.3 million in salaries and benefits. As a result of
these changes, selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of revenue decreased 2% from 12% for the year ended September 30, 2002 to 10% for the
year ended September 30, 2003.
 
Restructuring Charges
 In October 2001 we began implementation of a workforce reduction program. The purpose of this program was to cut costs by reducing the number of
administrative staff both in the field and at the home office. The total number of terminated employees was approximately 450. As a result of the program
implementation, we recorded pre-tax restructuring charges of $5.6 million associated with 45 employees during the year ended September 30, 2002 and presented
these charges as a separate component of our results of operations for the period then ended. No restructuring charges were incurred for the year ended
September 30, 2003. The charges were based on the costs of the workforce reduction program and include severance and other special termination benefits. We
believe the reduction of these personnel resulted in annual savings of approximately $4.1 million in salaries and benefits. At September 30, 2002, approximately
$2.0 million of these charges that related to five individuals had not been paid and were included in accounts payable and accrued expenses. At September 30,
2003, approximately $1.3 million of these charges that relate to three individuals have not been paid and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses.
The remaining payments accrued under this restructuring were made during the year ended September 30, 2004.
 
Income From Operations
 Income from operations increased $11.9 million, or 29%, from $40.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2002 to $52.8 million for the year ended
September 30, 2003. As a percentage of revenues, income from operations increased from 3% for the year ended September 30, 2002 to 4% for the year ended
September 30, 2003. This increase in income from operations was primarily attributed to $5.6 million in restructuring charges recorded during the year ended
September 30, 2002, and a $20.5 million decrease selling, general and administrative expenses year over year, offset by a $15.0 million decline in gross profits
earned during the year ended September 30, 2003.
 
Interest and Other Expense, net
 Interest and other expense, net decreased $1.6 million, or 6%, from $27.4 million in 2002 to $25.8 million in 2003. The decrease was primarily the result of
a $1.0 million decrease in interest expense during the year ended September 30, 2003 due to a lower amount of average debt outstanding during the year ended
September 30, 2003 compared to the year ended September 30, 2002. During the year ended September 30, 2003, other expense, net included a $0.4 million gain
from the sale of certain subsidiaries and a $0.8 million loss recorded on our investment in Energy Photovoltaics, Inc. This was a decrease from other expense, net,
for the year ended September 30, 2002, which included a $1.0 million gain resulting from the retirement of $27.1 million of our 9 3/8% senior subordinated notes
due February 1, 2009 in the last quarter of the year ended September 30, 2002, a
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$1.5 million net gain resulting from the sale of certain subsidiaries and offset by a $1.7 million loss recorded on our investment in Energy Photovoltaics, Inc. and
losses on sales of assets of $0.9 million.
 
Provision for Income Taxes
 Our effective tax rate decreased from 39% for the year ended September 30, 2002 to 28% for the year ended September 30, 2003. This decrease is
attributable to the release of $2.8 million of tax valuation allowances that were included in income during the year ended September 30, 2003. We released these
valuation allowances because we believe that we will now realize a portion of the deferred tax assets for which they were established. Without the impact of these
valuation allowance releases, our effective tax rate was 38.5% for the year ended September 30, 2003.
 
Cost Drivers
 As a service business, our cost structure is highly variable. Our primary costs include labor, materials and insurance. Approximately 48% of our costs are
derived from labor and related expenses. For the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, our labor-related expenses totaled $568.0 million, $553.5
million and $604.8 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2004, we had approximately 11,600 employees. Approximately 9,635 employees were field
electricians, the number of which fluctuates depending upon the number and size of the projects undertaken by us at any particular time. Approximately 1,974
employees were project managers, job superintendents and administrative and management personnel, including executive officers, estimators or engineers, office
staff and clerical personnel. We provide a health, welfare and benefit plan for all employees subject to eligibility requirements. We have a 401(k) plan pursuant to
which eligible employees may make contributions through a payroll deduction. We make matching cash contributions of 25% of each employee’s contribution up
to 6% of that employee’s salary. We also have an employee stock purchase plan that provides eligible employees the opportunity to contribute up to 100% of their
cash compensation, up to $21,250 annually, toward the annual purchase of our common stock at a discounted price; 1,124 employees participated in this plan
during the year ended September 30, 2004.
 

Approximately 49% of our costs incurred are for materials installed on projects. This component of our expense structure is variable based on the demand
for our services. We generally incur costs for materials once we begin work on a project. We generally order materials when needed, ship them directly to the
jobsite, and install them within 30 days. Materials consist of commodity-based items such as conduit, wire and fuses as well as specialty items such as fixtures,
switchgear and control panels. For the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, our materials expenses (net of earned rebates) totaled $531.5 million,
$542.0 million and $612.3 million, respectively.
 

We are insured for workers’ compensation, employer’s liability, auto liability, general liability and health insurance, subject to large deductibles. Losses up
to the deductible amounts are accrued based upon actuarial studies and our estimates of the ultimate liability for claims incurred and an estimate of claims
incurred but not reported. The accruals are based upon known facts and historical trends and management believes such accruals to be adequate. Expenses for
claims administration, claims funding and reserves funding totaled $49.3 million, $40.8 million and $37.1 million for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003,
and 2004, respectively.
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Working Capital
 

   

SEPTEMBER 30,

   

        2003        

  

        2004        

   (In thousands, except for ratios)
   (restated)    
CURRENT ASSETS:         

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 40,201  $ 22,232
Accounts receivable:         

Trade, net of allowance of $5,425 and $4,519 respectively    245,618   247,324
Retainage    68,789   71,920
Related party    67   67

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts    46,999   41,816
Inventories    20,473   22,657
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    14,427   13,307

     
Total current assets   $ 436,574  $ 419,323

     
CURRENT LIABILITIES:         

Current maturities of long-term debt   $ 256  $ 43,007
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    138,143   149,485
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts    42,415   37,589

     
Total current liabilities   $ 180,814  $ 230,081

     
Working capital   $ 255,760  $ 189,242

     
 
Total current assets decreased $17.3 million, or 4%, from $436.6 million as of September 30, 2003 to $419.3 million as of September 30, 2004. This decrease is
primarily the result of a $18.0 million decrease in cash and cash equivalents that was impacted by $50.0 million in term loan borrowings offset by cash used to
retire $75.0 million of senior subordinated debt included in cash used in financing activities. Additionally, $6.3 million of cash was used in investing activities.
See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for further information. The decline in working capital also reflects a $5.2 million reduction in costs and estimated
earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts. The increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets is due to a $7.5 million deposit that was
outstanding at September 30, 2004, to collateralize our surety program.
 
As of September 30, 2004, the status of our costs in excess of billings versus our billings in excess of costs improved over that at September 30, 2003, and days
sales outstanding increased 8.2% from September 30, 2003 to September 30, 2004. Included in this increase are $10.2 million of several long standing receivables
from September 30, 2003 not fully collected as of September 30, 2004. Adjusting for these receivables as of September 30, 2004, our days sales outstanding
increased only 4.8% from September 30, 2003 to September 30, 2004. As is common in the construction industry, some of these receivables are in litigation or
require us to exercise our contractual lien rights and are expected to be collected within the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. Our receivables and costs and
earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts as compared to quarterly revenues increased from 94.9% at September 30, 2003 to 98.3% at September
30, 2004, adjusted for the aforementioned long-standing receivables outstanding at September 30, 2004. This increase was primarily concentrated in a few
operating companies where receivables and costs and earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts decreased 1.5%, adjusted for the long-standing
receivables outstanding at September 30, 2004, while quarterly revenues decreased 11.7%. The disparate decrease in accounts receivable and costs and earnings
in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts as compared to quarterly revenues for these operating companies resulted from retention receivables totaling
approximately $3.1 million that were earned on long-term projects in prior periods and remained unpaid as of September 30, 2004. Payment of these outstanding
balances is expected in early fiscal 2005. Additionally, trade accounts receivable increased $3.7 million at one company from September 30, 2003 to September
30, 2004 due primarily to customers delaying payments related to the events we experienced during the fiscal fourth quarter of 2004 and increased delinquency in
payments
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from one particular customer amounting to $0.4 million at September 30, 2004 that we expect payment for in fiscal 2005 through the customer’s bonding
company. We do not believe that the increase in days sales outstanding and the growth of our accounts receivable in 2004 as compared to total revenues is an
indication of a revenue recognition problem or a problem with ultimate collectibility. We believe that our allowances for doubtful accounts are sufficient to cover
any uncollectible accounts.
 
Total current liabilities increased $49.3 million, or 27%, from $180.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2003 to $230.1 million for the year ended
September 30, 2004. This increase is primarily the result of $43.0 million of our term loan under our credit facility becoming due before September 30, 2005, a
$11.3 million increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities that includes the $8.0 million accrual for litigation settlement, offset by a decrease in billings in
excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts of $4.9 million. We expect proceeds from asset sales to retire the term loan amounts due in fiscal
2005.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 As of September 30, 2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of $22.2 million, working capital of $189.3 million, $57.9 million in borrowings under our
credit facility, $173.2 million of outstanding senior subordinated notes, $25.8 million of letters of credit outstanding and available borrowing capacity under our
credit facility of $41.3 million.
 

As of September 30, 2004, the status of our costs in excess of billings versus our billings in excess of costs improved over that at September 30, 2003; and
days sales outstanding were essentially stable year over year. We believe our billings progress and collectibility status were improved year over year and our
allowance for doubtful accounts accurately reflects our best estimate of our accounts receivable balance that may be uncollectible at September 30, 2004.
 

During the year ended September 30, 2004, we generated $4.7 million of net cash from operating activities. This net cash from operating activities was
comprised of a net loss of $124.9 million, increased by $112.9 million of non-cash charges, including a goodwill impairment charge in the fourth quarter ended
September 30, 2004 of $99.8 million, and increased by $18.0 million in working capital changes. Non-cash charges included depreciation and amortization
expense, bad debt expense, changes in deferred income taxes, gains on sales of property and equipment, and impairment of goodwill. Working capital changes
consisted of a net cash decrease of $4.9 million in billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted projects offset by a net cash increase of $4.8
million in cost and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts. These working capital changes were offset by a $2.2 million increase in
inventory and a $14.6 million increase in payables and accrued expenses offset by an $8.6 million increase in receivables as a result of the timing of collections,
with the balance of the change due to other working capital changes. Net cash used in investing activities was $6.3 million, including $6.5 million used for capital
expenditures and $0.8 million used for investments, offset by $1.0 million provided from the sale of property and equipment. Net cash used by financing activities
was $16.3 million, resulting primarily from $17.4 in net repayments of debt, and $4.3 million for the acquisition of treasury stock, including 5.6 million for debt
issue costs.
 

During the year ended September 30, 2003, we completed a 2 million share repurchase program. We used approximately $10.2 million in cash generated
from operations to repurchase shares during the year ended September 30, 2003.
 

On November 5, 2003, we commenced a $13 million share repurchase program. We used approximately $4.6 million in cash generated from operations to
repurchase 549,200 shares during the year ended September 30, 2004 under this program. The terms of our credit facility, as amended, restrict our ability to
repurchase shares under this program.
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On February 27, 2004, we amended and restated our $125.0 million revolving credit facility to a $125.0 million revolving credit facility and a $50.0 million
term loan led by Bank One, NA. We used the proceeds from the term loan and available cash to redeem $75.0 million principal amount of our long term bonds.
Since February 27, 2004, and through December 10, 2004, we have amended the credit facility four times. The amendments provided, among other things, for
covenants or waivers that permit us to file our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 on or before December 15, 2004, permitted us to issue senior
convertible notes, specified mandatory debt reduction amounts by quarter, adjusted and redefined financial covenants on a monthly basis beginning December 31,
2004, increased pricing, established the borrowing base at 70 percent of qualifying receivables and permit us to release certain collateral related to bonded jobs to
companies providing surety bonding. These amendments required the payments of fees upon their execution. These fees are capitalized as deferred financing
costs and amortized over the life of the facility. The credit facility, as amended, matures on January 13, 2006. We have the ability to extend the facility until
January 12, 2007 upon the payment of a fee if certain financial conditions are met. The term loan of the credit facility is due by September 30, 2005. At
September 30, 2004, the term loan had outstanding borrowings of $42.9 million. Amounts borrowed under the credit facility, as amended, bear interest at an
annual rate of the banks prime rate plus two percent. Fees of one percent per annum are assessed on the outstanding credit facility commitment as of the
beginning of each quarter beginning January 1, 2005. Our direct and indirect subsidiaries guarantee the repayment of all amounts due under the facility and the
facility is secured by a first perfected security interest in all the assets of the company and those subsidiaries, including all of the outstanding capital shares of the
capital stock of those subsidiaries. Among other restrictions, the financial covenants include minimum EBITDA requirements for core and all operations, a
maximum senior secured debt to EBITDA ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio.
 

We have outstanding two different issues of senior subordinated notes with similar terms. The notes bear interest at 9 3/8% and will mature on February 1,
2009. We pay interest on the notes on February 1 and August 1 of each year. The notes are unsecured senior subordinated obligations and are subordinated to all
of our existing and future senior indebtedness. The notes are guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by all of our subsidiaries. Under the terms of the notes, we
are required to comply with various affirmative and negative covenants including (1) restrictions on additional indebtedness, and (2) restrictions on liens,
guarantees and dividends. During the year ended September 30, 2002, we retired approximately $27.1 million of these senior subordinated notes. In connection
with these transactions, we recorded a gain of $1.0 million. This gain is recorded in interest and other expense, net during the year ended September 30, 2002 in
accordance with SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” which
we adopted July 1, 2002. During the year ended September 30, 2004, we redeemed $75.0 million principal amount of our senior subordinated notes, paying a call
premium of 4.688%, or $3.5 million. This premium along with a write off of previously capitalized deferred financing costs of $1.6 million was recorded as a loss
in other income and expense in accordance with SFAS No. 145. At September 30, 2004, we had $172.9 million in outstanding senior subordinated notes.
 

In August 2001, we entered into an interest rate swap contract that had a notional amount of $100.0 million and was established to manage the interest rate
risk of the senior subordinated note obligations. We terminated this contract in February 2002. At termination, we received cash equal to the fair value of this
derivative of $1.5 million, which is being amortized over the remaining life of the bonds.
 

In February 2002 we entered into a new interest rate swap contract that had a notional amount of $100.0 million and was established to manage the interest
rate risk of the senior subordinated note obligations. We terminated this contract in August 2002. At termination, we received cash equal to the fair value of this
derivative of $2.5 million, which is being amortized over the remaining life of the bonds. At September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, we had no outstanding interest
rate swap contracts.
 

Effective October 1, 2001, we adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which establishes new accounting and reporting
requirements for goodwill and other intangible assets. Under SFAS No. 142, all goodwill amortization ceased effective October 1, 2001. Goodwill amortization
for the years ended
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September 30, 2002 and 2003 would have otherwise been $12.9 million (before the impairment charge). Goodwill attributable to each of our reporting units was
tested for impairment by comparing the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying value. Fair value was determined using discounted cash flows, market
multiples and market capitalization. These impairment tests are required to be performed at adoption of SFAS No. 142 and at least annually thereafter. Significant
estimates used in the methodologies include estimates of future cash flows, future short-term and long-term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and
estimates of market multiples for each of the reportable units. On an ongoing basis (absent any impairment indicators), we expect to perform our impairment tests
annually during the first fiscal quarter.
 

Based on our impairment tests performed upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, we recognized a charge of $283.3 million ($7.11 per share) in the first quarter of
2002 to reduce the carrying value of goodwill of our reporting units to its implied fair value. This impairment is a result of adopting a fair value approach, under
SFAS No. 142, to testing impairment of goodwill as compared to the previous method utilized in which evaluations of goodwill impairment were made using the
estimated future undiscounted cash flows compared to the assets carrying amount.
 

The impairment was the result of lower forecasted future operating income at the point of adoption than we anticipated to result from decreased spending in
the construction industry in all of our markets. The impairment related to our operating regions follows (amounts in millions):
 

Southeast   $ 89.2
Northeast    35.2
Gulf Plains    47.4
Central    80.8
West    21.0
Residential    2.6
Divested after adoption    7.1
   
Total   $283.3

   
 

Under SFAS No. 142, the impairment adjustment recognized at adoption of the new rules was reflected as a cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle in the statement of operations for the year ended September 30, 2002. Impairment adjustments recognized after adoption, if any, generally are required
to be recognized as operating expenses.
 

On August 13, 2004, we announced that we would not timely file our results for the three months ended June 30, 2004 on Form 10-Q. We also announced
that there was also a possibility that factors surrounding certain material weaknesses in internal control may require a restatement of prior periods. Following this
announcement, our stock price declined 40 percent to $3.93 on August 16, 2004. We believe that this decline in stock price plus the jury verdict and uncertainties
surrounding our ability to obtain surety bonds was reflective of a change in our operations that indicated that a possible impairment of the carrying amount of
goodwill existed at September 30, 2004. Therefore, we performed a test for impairment and consequently recorded a charge of $99.8 million. This charge is
included in arriving at income (loss) from operations for the year ended September 30, 2004. The impairment detailed by our operating regions follows (amounts
in millions):
 

Southeast   $28.8
Northeast    16.3
Gulf Plains    2.1
Central    51.0
West    1.6
   
Total   $99.8
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On February 27, 2003 we acquired substantially all of the operating assets of Riviera Electric LLC (“Riviera”) out of a bankruptcy auction of a prior
competitor. Riviera provides electrical contracting services in the state of Colorado. The purchase price consisted of approximately $2.7 million of cash, net of
cash acquired. The cash used to purchase this acquisition was funded by operations.
 

In December 2000, we made an investment in Energy Photovoltaics, Inc. (EPV), based in Lawrenceville, New Jersey. EPV is a privately held developer
and provider of proprietary thin film processes and equipment for manufacturing photovoltaic modules to provide solar energy. We account for our 21 percent
interest in EPV in accordance with the equity method of accounting and accordingly recorded our share of EPV’s losses of $1.7 million, $0.8 million and $0.9
million for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively. At September 30, 2004, we had a carrying value of our investment in EPV $0.3
million and a $1.8 million debt investment in EPV. We performed a discounted cash flow analysis at September 30, 2004 and determined that no impairment to
this investment existed. This investment involves certain risks involving demand for photovoltaic services. If EPV is unable to deliver on its business plan, we
could deem this investment impaired and would record a charge to other expense in the period such impairment, if any, is determined.
 

All of our operating income and cash flows are generated by our 100% owned subsidiaries, which are the subsidiary guarantors of our outstanding 9 3/8%
senior subordinated notes due 2009 (the “Senior Subordinated Notes”). We are structured as a holding company and substantially all of our assets and operations
are held by our subsidiaries. There are currently no significant restrictions on our ability to obtain funds from our subsidiaries by dividend or loan. The parent
holding company’s independent assets, revenues, income before taxes and operating cash flows are less than 3% of the consolidated total. The separate financial
statements of the subsidiary guarantors are not included herein because (i) the subsidiary guarantors are all of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of us; (ii) the
subsidiary guarantors have fully and unconditionally, jointly and severally guaranteed the Senior Subordinated Notes; and (iii) the aggregate assets, liabilities,
earnings and equity of the subsidiary guarantors is substantially equivalent to the assets, liabilities, earnings and equity of us on a consolidated basis. As a result,
the presentation of separate financial statements and other disclosures concerning the subsidiary guarantors is not deemed material.
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 As is common in our industry, we have entered into certain off balance sheet arrangements that expose us to increased risk. Our significant off balance
sheet transactions include commitments associated with noncancelable operating leases, letter of credit obligations and surety guarantees.
 

We enter into noncancelable operating leases for many of our vehicle and equipment needs. These leases allow us to retain our cash when we do not own
the vehicles or equipment and we pay a monthly lease rental fee. At the end of the lease, we have no further obligation to the lessor. We may determine to cancel
or terminate a lease before the end of its term. Typically we are liable to the lessor for various lease cancellation or termination costs and the difference between
the then fair market value of the leased asset and the implied book value of the leased asset as calculated in accordance with the lease agreement.
 

Some of our customers require us to post letters of credit as a means of guaranteeing performance under our contracts and ensuring payment by us to
subcontractors and vendors. If our customer has reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit, we would be required to reimburse our creditor for the
letter of credit. Depending on the circumstances surrounding a reimbursement to our creditor, we may have a charge to earnings in that period. To date we have
not had a situation where a customer has had reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit. At September 30, 2004, $1.9 million of our outstanding
letters of credit were to collateralize our customers.
 

Some of the underwriters of our casualty insurance program require us to post letters of credit as collateral. This is common in the insurance industry. To
date we have not had a situation where an underwriter has had reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit. At September 30, 2004, $18.9 million
of our outstanding letters of credit were to collateralize our insurance program.
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Many of our customers require us to post performance and payment bonds issued by a surety. Those bonds guarantee the customer that we will perform
under the terms of a contract and that we will pay subcontractors and vendors. In the event that we fail to perform under a contract or pay subcontractors and
vendors, the customer may demand the surety to pay or perform under our bond. Our relationship with our sureties is such that we will indemnify the sureties for
any expenses they incur in connection with any of the bonds they issues on our behalf. To date, we have not incurred significant costs to indemnify our sureties
for expenses they incurred on our behalf. As of September 30, 2004, our cost to complete projects covered by surety bonds was approximately $200.0 million and
we utilized a combination of cash and letters of credit totaling $12.5 million to collateralize our bonding program.
 
Other Commitments
 In April 2000, we committed to invest up to $5.0 million in EnerTech Capital Partners II L.P. (EnerTech). EnerTech is a private equity firm specializing in
investment opportunities emerging from the deregulation and resulting convergence of the energy, utility and telecommunications industries. Through September
30, 2004, we had invested $3.5 million under our commitment to EnerTech. The carrying value of this EnerTech investment at September 30, 2003 and 2004 was
$2.5 million and $3.0 million, respectively. This investment is accounted for on the cost basis of accounting and accordingly, we do not record unrealized losses
for the EnerTech investment that it believes are temporary in nature. As of September 30, 2004, the unrealized losses related to the Company’s share of the
EnerTech fund amounted to approximately $0.8 million, which we believe are temporary in nature. If facts arise that lead us to determine that such unrealized
losses are not temporary, we would write down our investment in EnerTech through a charge to other expense during the period of such determination.
 

Our future contractual obligations include (in thousands)(1):
 

   

2005

  

2006

  

2007

  

2008

  

2009

  

Thereafter

  

Total

Debt obligations   $ 42,929  $ —    $ 15,000  $ —    $ 172,885  $ —    $ 230,814
Capital lease obligations   $ 66  $ 78  $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 144
Operating lease obligations   $ 14,261  $ 9,703  $ 6,326  $ 3,795  $ 2,911  $ —    $ 36,996

(1) The tabular amounts exclude the interest obligations that will be created if the debt and capital lease obligations are outstanding for the periods presented.
 

Our other commercial commitments expire as follows (in thousands):
 

   

2005

  

2006

  

2007

  

2008

  

2009

  

Thereafter

  

Total

Standby letters of credit   $ 25,808  $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 25,808
Other commercial commitments   $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 1,500(2)  $ 1,500

(2) Balance of investment commitment in EnerTech.
 
Outlook
 Economic conditions across the country are challenging although construction industry spending is expected to increase by two percent in 2005 according
to F.W. Dodge. We continue to focus on collecting receivables and reducing days sales outstanding. We will continue to take steps to reduce our costs. We have
made significant reductions in administrative overhead at the home office and in the field. We have elected to sell or close certain operations that are heavily
dependent on bonding or are otherwise underperforming. These operations generated total revenues in fiscal 2004 of $327.1 million and operating losses of $11.7
million. If we are successful in our efforts to sell these operations, their revenue and income (loss) contributions will no longer be included in our results of
operations and the sales proceeds will be used primarily to reduce our indebtedness. As we continue to divest of operations and cut costs our outlook will change.
Therefore, we are not providing guidance at this time.
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We expect to generate cash flow from operations, sales of businesses, borrowing under our convertible debt indenture and our credit facility. Our cash
flows from operations tend to track with the seasonality of our business and historically have improved in the latter part of our fiscal year. We anticipate that these
combined cash flows will provide sufficient cash to enable us to meet our working capital needs, debt service requirements and capital expenditures for property
and equipment through the next twelve months. We expect capital expenditures of approximately $5.0 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. Our
ability to generate cash flow is dependent on many factors, including demand for our products and services, the availability of projects at margins acceptable to
us, the ultimate collectibility of our receivables, the ability to consummate transactions to dispose of businesses and our ability to borrow on our credit facility.
See “Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”
 
Seasonality and Cyclical Fluctuations
 Our results of operations from residential construction are seasonal, depending on weather trends, with typically higher revenues generated during spring
and summer and lower revenues during fall and winter. The commercial and industrial aspect of our business is less subject to seasonal trends, as this work
generally is performed inside structures protected from the weather. Our service and maintenance business is generally not affected by seasonality. In addition, the
construction industry has historically been highly cyclical. Our volume of business may be adversely affected by declines in construction projects resulting from
adverse regional or national economic conditions. Quarterly results may also be materially affected by the timing of new construction projects, acquisitions and
the timing and magnitude of acquisition assimilation costs. Accordingly, operating results for any fiscal period are not necessarily indicative of results that may be
achieved for any subsequent fiscal period.
 
Inflation
 Due to the relatively low levels of inflation experienced in fiscal 2002 and 2003, inflation did not have a significant effect on our results in those fiscal
years or on any of the acquired businesses during similar periods. During fiscal 2004, however, we experienced significant increases in the commodity prices of
copper products, steel products and fuel. Over the long-term, we expect to be able to pass these increased costs to our customers.
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” (“Interpretation
46”). The objective of Interpretation 46 is to improve the financial reporting by companies involved with variable interest entities. Until Interpretation 46, one
company generally has included another entity in its consolidated financial statements only if it controlled the entity through voting interest. Interpretation 46
changes that by requiring a variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable
interest entity’s activities or entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. The consolidation requirements of Interpretation 46 apply
immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. The consolidation requirements apply to older entities in the first fiscal year or interim
period ending after December 15, 2003. Certain of disclosure requirements apply to all financial statements issued after January 31, 2003, regardless of when the
variable interest entity was established. We have minority interests in two firms, EnerTech Capital Partners II, L.P. and Energy Photovoltaics, Inc., and a joint
venture that may fall under this interpretation. The adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.
 

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics
of both Liabilities and Equity,” (“SFAS 150”). SFAS 150 requires that mandatorily redeemable financial instruments issued in the form of shares be classified as
liabilities, and specifies certain measurement and disclosure requirements for such instruments. The provisions of SFAS 150 were effective at the beginning of the
first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. We adopted the requirements of SFAS 150 as of July 1, 2003. The adoption did not have a material impact on
our results of operations or financial position.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2004 and 2003,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2004.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.
 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged
to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Integrated Electrical
Services, Inc. and subsidiaries at September 30, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended September 30, 2004 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
 

As discussed in Note 3 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated its 2002 and 2003 financial statements.
 

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
 
Houston, Texas
December 8, 2004,
except for Notes 1 and 7,
    as to which the date is
    December 13, 2004 and
    except for Notes 3 and 15, as to
    which the date is April 11, 2005
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE INFORMATION)
 

   

SEPTEMBER 30,

 

   

2003

  

2004

 
   (restated)     

ASSETS          

CURRENT ASSETS:          
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 40,201  $ 22,232 
Accounts receivable:          

Trade, net of allowance of $5,425 and $4,519, respectively    245,618   247,324 
Retainage    68,789   71,920 
Related party    67   67 

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts    46,999   41,816 
Inventories    20,473   22,657 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    14,427   13,307 

    
Total current assets    436,574   419,323 

    
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net    52,697   44,861 
GOODWILL, net    197,884   98,086 
OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS, net    27,332   18,663 
    

Total assets   $ 714,487  $ 580,933 

    
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY          

CURRENT LIABILITIES:          
Current maturities of long-term debt   $ 256  $ 43,007 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    138,143   149,485 
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts    42,415   37,589 

    
Total current liabilities    180,814   230,081 

    
LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current maturities    195   15,066 
SENIOR SUBORDINATED NOTES, net    247,927   173,208 
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES    20,644   19,410 
    

Total liabilities    449,580   437,765 
    
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:          

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding    —     —   
Common stock, $.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 38,439,984 shares issued    385   385 
Restricted voting common stock, $.01 par value, 2,605,709 shares issued, authorized and outstanding    26   26 
Treasury stock, at cost, 2,725,793 and 2,172,313 shares, respectively    (16,361)  (13,790)
Unearned restricted stock    —     (1,113)
Additional paid-in capital    427,709   429,376 
Retained deficit    (146,852)  (271,716)

    
Total stockholders’ equity    264,907   143,168 

    
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 714,487  $ 580,933 

    
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE INFORMATION)
 

   

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

 

   

2002

  

2003

  

2004

 
   (restated)   (restated)     
REVENUES   $ 1,474,461  $ 1,447,763  $ 1,424,100 
COST OF SERVICES    1,253,031   1,241,330   1,250,170 
     

Gross profit    221,430   206,433   173,930 
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    174,997   153,651   158,906 
RESTRUCTURING CHARGES    5,556   —     —   
GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT CHARGE    —     —     99,798 
     

Income (loss) from operations    40,877   52,782   (84,774)
     
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):              

Interest expense    (26,702)  (25,744)  (23,187)
Other, net    (703)  (24)  (5,819)

     
Interest and other expense, net    (27,405)  (25,768)  (29,006)

     
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE    13,472   27,014   (113,780)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES    5,196   7,577   11,084 
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE, NET OF TAX    283,284   —     —   
     
NET INCOME (LOSS)   $ (275,008) $ 19,437  $ (124,864)

     
BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:              
Basic earnings (loss) per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ 0.21  $ 0.50  $ (3.23)

     
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ (7.11) $ —    $ —   

     
Basic earnings (loss) per share   $ (6.90) $ 0.50  $ (3.23)

     
DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:              
Diluted earnings (loss) per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ 0.21  $ 0.50  $ (3.23)

     
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ (7.11) $ —    $ —   

     
Diluted earnings (loss) per share   $ (6.90) $ 0.50  $ (3.23)

     
SHARES USED IN THE COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:              

Basic    39,847,591   39,062,776   38,610,326 

     
Diluted    39,847,591   39,225,312   38,610,326 

     
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE INFORMATION)
 

  

Common Stock

 

Restricted Voting
Common Stock

 

Treasury Stock

  
Unearned
Restricted

Stock

 

 
Additional

Paid-In
Capital

 

 
Retained
Earnings
(Deficit)

 

 
Total

Stockholders’
Equity

   

Shares

 

Amount

 

Shares

 

Amount

 

Shares

  

Amount

     
BALANCE,

September 30, 2001  38,331,672 $ 383 2,605,709 $ 26 (1,245,879) $ (9,181) $ —    $ 428,697  $ 108,719  $ 528,644 
Issuance of stock  7,306  —   —    —   213,150   1,321   —     (349)  —     972 
Purchase of treasury stock  —    —   —    —   (209,600)  (984)  —     —     —     (984)
Receipt of treasury stock  —    —   —    —   (241,224)  (1,392)  —     —     —     (1,392)
Issuance of stock under employee stock purchase plan  —    —   —    —   55,742   411   —     (411)  —     —   
Exercise of stock options  101,006  2 —    —   6,743   51   —     490   —     543 
Net loss (restated)  —    —   —    —   —     —     —     —     (275,008)  (275,008)

           
BALANCE,

September 30, 2002 (restated)  38,439,984 $ 385 2,605,709 $ 26 (1,421,068) $ (9,774) $ —    $ 428,427  $(166,289) $ 252,775 
Issuance of stock  —    —   —    —   14,750   90   —     (13)  —     77 
Purchase of treasury stock  —    —   —    —   (1,890,400)  (10,207)  —     —     —     (10,207)
Receipt of treasury stock  —    —   —    —   (70,330)  (270)  —     —     —     (270)
Issuance of stock under employee stock purchase plan  —    —   —    —   248,982   1,549   —     (728)  —     821 
Exercise of stock options  —    —   —    —   392,273   2,251   —     23   —     2,274 
Net income (restated)  —    —   —    —   —     —     —     —     19,437   19,437 

           
BALANCE,

September 30, 2003 (restated)  38,439,984 $ 385 2,605,709 $ 26 (2,725,793) $(16,361) $ —    $ 427,709  $(146,852) $ 264,907 
Issuance of stock  —    —   —    —   12,931   81   —     32   —     113 
Issuance of restricted stock  —    —   —    —       —     (1,992)  1,992   —     —   
Purchase of treasury stock  —    —   —    —   (549,200)  (4,340)  —     —     —     (4,340)
Issuance of stock under employee stock purchase plan  —    —   —    —   247,081   1,592   —     (614)  —     978 
Exercise of stock options  —    —   —    —   842,668   5,238   —     339   —     5,577 
Non-cash compensation  —    —   —    —   —     —     879   (82)  —     797 
Net (loss)  —    —   —    —   —     —     —     —     (124,864)  (124,864)

           
BALANCE,

September 30, 2004  38,439,984 $ 385 2,605,709 $ 26 (2,172,313) $(13,790) $ (1,113) $ 429,376  $(271,716) $ 143,168 

           
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(IN THOUSANDS)
 

   

Year Ended September 30,

 

   

2002

  

2003

  

2004

 
   (restated)   (restated)     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:              

Net income (loss)   $(275,008) $ 19,437  $(124,864)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash              

Provided by operating activities-              
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle    283,284   —     —   
Bad debt expense    4,324   2,277   3,614 
Deferred income taxes    5,196   7,577   8,959 
Depreciation and amortization    18,633   16,315   13,635 
Loss on sale of property and equipment    1,547   38   680 
Impairments to investment    1,667   805   863 
Non-cash compensation charge    1,422   —     797 
Impairment of goodwill    —     —     99,798 
Gain on divestitures    (2,145)  (381)  —   

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions and dispositions of businesses              
(Increase) decrease in:              

Accounts receivable    30,943   (2,667)  (8,451)
Inventories    (2,770)  3,011   (2,184)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts    14,524   (288)  5,183 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    (9,824)  1,200   887 
Other noncurrent assets    3,199   (2,221)  2,105 

Increase (decrease) in:              

Accounts payable and accrued expenses    (37,739)  2,606   11,964 
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts    4,678   (13,550)  (4,826)
Other current liabilities    172   —     (622)
Other noncurrent liabilities    11,264   5,144   (1,234)

     
Net cash provided by operating activities    53,367   39,303   6,304 

     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:              

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment    895   2,339   307 
Purchases of property and equipment    (11,895)  (8,727)  (6,505)
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired    —     (2,723)  —   
Sale of businesses    7,549   2,153   —   
Investments in securities    (300)  (900)  (800)
Additions to note receivable from affiliate    (583)  —     —   

     
Net cash used in investing activities    (4,334)  (7,858)  (6,998)

     
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:              

Borrowings    74,613   77   80,040 
Repayments of debt    (97,941)  (16,309)  (97,418)
Proceeds from sale of interest rate swaps    4,040   —     —   
Purchase of treasury stock    (984)  (10,207)  (4,340)
Payments for debt issuance costs    —     (679)  (2,219)
Proceeds from issuance of stock    —     —     113 
Proceeds from issuance of stock under employee stock purchase plan    —     821   972 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options    543   2,274   5,577 

     
Net cash used in financing activities    (19,729)  (24,023)  (17,275)

     
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    29,304   7,422   (17,969)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period    3,475   32,779   40,201 
     
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period   $ 32,779  $ 40,201  $ 22,232 

     
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:              

Cash paid for              
Interest   $ 23,117  $ 24,003  $ 23,379 
Income taxes    5,091   599   931 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 
22



Table of Contents

INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
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1. BUSINESS:
 Description of the Business
 Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (the “Company” or “IES”), a Delaware corporation, was founded in June 1997 to create a leading national provider of
electrical services, focusing primarily on the commercial and industrial, residential, low voltage and service and maintenance markets.
 

Recent Developments
 During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company was informed of certain issues at one of its subsidiaries, and as a result, IES conducted an evaluation
of the financial results of this subsidiary. Additionally, the Company’s Audit Committee engaged special counsel to conduct an investigation of those matters.
Efforts were also extended to determine if similar issues existed at other subsidiaries. The special investigation has been concluded, and the Company believes
that the issues regarding its financial results were not widespread. The issues at the subsidiary related to (1) a series of large contracts accounted for on a
percentage of completion basis in which actual costs projected to be incurred exceeded the original projected costs, but appropriate adjustments were not timely
reflected, (2) general and administrative costs recorded to a particular contract that did not relate to that contract and (3) the recognition of revenue related to the
recording of incorrect margin on a particular long-term contract. The Company did identify one additional issue at another subsidiary related to the timing of
revenue recognition attributable to a large project that was not detected as part of the Company’s normal closing process.
 

As a result of the above matters and the timing of their resolution, the independent auditors could not complete their procedures in accordance with AU
722, “Interim Financial Information,” on the Company’s third quarter results. They advised IES that until the audit of its fiscal year 2004 financial statements was
completed, they would be unable to complete their procedures in accordance with AU 722 on third quarter results and consequently, the Company did not timely
file its quarterly report on Form 10-Q. The reasons for the delay include concerns over material weaknesses identified by the independent auditors and concerns
that the size of the adjustments taken for the items identified above, coupled with the potential for similar issues at other subsidiaries as well as any other
adjustments that may have been identified in the course of the audit, could result in a requirement to restate prior periods.
 

The Company’s failure to timely file its June 30, 2004 Form 10-Q resulted in defaults under the indenture relating to the Company’s subordinated debt and
senior secured credit facility. The Company has since cured all defaults under both its subordinated debt and its senior secured credit facility. The Company’s
failure to timely file its Form 10-Q, coupled with current conditions in the surety bonding industry have affected IES’ ability to obtain surety bonding consistent
with historical terms. After the Company did not timely file its Form 10-Q, several putative class action lawsuits were filed against IES and certain of its officers
and one shareholder derivative action was filed against its directors and certain employees. Concurrent with the filing of the Company’s Form 10-K, the Company
has filed its June 30, 2004 Form 10-Q.
 

To position IES for continued success, the Company began executing several plans. Those plans include generating cash flows and obtaining additional
sources of capital, settling the jury verdict returned against the Company, selling businesses that meet certain criteria, obtaining support and flexibility from the
senior secured bank group and securing sufficient bonding for the remaining entities.
 

To date, IES has made progress in executing its plans. On November 24, 2004, IES announced that it had closed and received funding from a private
placement of $36.0 million 6.5% senior convertible notes due 2014. The investors in those notes have the option to purchase another $14.0 million in notes to
occur on the 90th day after the closing date or the fifth business day after IES’ next annual meeting of stockholders, whichever is later.
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On December 6, 2004, IES announced that it had settled a jury verdict of approximately $30.0 million for $8.0 million. On December 10, 2004, IES announced
that on a cumulative basis since November 29, 2004, it had completed three sales of businesses and received approximately $11.5 million in cash which was used
to pay down debt. On December 13, 2004, IES announced that it had completed its fourth amendment to its credit facility. This amendment provides the
Company with sufficient flexibility and liquidity through January 2006, with the possibility of an extension through January 2007 if certain conditions are met.
Lastly, the Company has been in discussions with its current surety and other potentials sureties. The Company believes that the flexibility provided by the fourth
amendment to release collateral to sureties and the filing of its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, may lead to improved surety terms going forward.
 

The Company intends to continue executing on planned sales of businesses of which net proceeds will be used to primarily pay down bank debt. The sales
of businesses are projected to generate enough net proceeds to fully repay the Company’s outstanding bank debt during fiscal 2005. The Company is forecasting
cash flows from operations and borrowing capacity which is sufficient to sustain operations and maintain bank covenants through the end of fiscal 2005, even
without selling all the businesses currently considered for sale. There can be no guarantees, however, that the Company can execute fully on its plans. If the
Company is not successful in fully executing its plans, it could have a significant negative impact on the operations and cash flows of the Company.
 

Business Risks
 In the course of its operations, the Company is subject to certain risk factors, including but not limited to: exposure to downturns in the economy, risks
related to management of internal growth and execution of strategy, management of external growth, availability of qualified employees, competition, seasonality,
risks associated with contracts, significant fluctuations in quarterly results, recoverability of goodwill, collectibility of receivables, dependence on key personnel
and risks associated with the availability of capital and with debt service.
 

Current conditions in the surety bonding industry are adversely affecting the Company’s subsidiaries’ ability to obtain surety bonding consistent with
historical terms. Losses experienced by the surety industry in the past two years have caused surety providers to limit capacity and increase costs for all
participants, including the Company’s subsidiaries. Many surety companies have ceased writing surety bonds. At this time, there is no commitment from the
surety to write bonds. There are situations if surety bonds are not provided that claims or damages may result. Those situations are where surety bonds are
required for jobs that have been awarded, where contracts are signed, where work has begun or where bonds may be able to be required in the future by the
customer pursuant to terms of the contracts. If the Company’s subsidiary is in one of those situations and not able to obtain a surety bond then the result can be a
damage claim by the customer for the costs of replacing the subsidiary with the another contractor. Customers are often reluctant to replace an existing contractor
and may be willing to waive the contractual right or through negotiation be willing to continue the work on different payment terms.
 

Surety bond companies may also provide surety bonds at a cost including (i) payment of a premium plus (ii) posting cash or letters of credit as collateral.
The cost of cash collateral or letters of credit in addition to the selling, general and administrative costs and the industry practice of the customer retaining a
percentage of the contract (5%-10%) amount as retention until the end of the job, could make certain bonded projects uneconomic to perform.
 

In the construction business there are frequently claims and litigation. Latent defect litigation is a normal course for residential home builders in some parts
of the country. There is also the inherent claims and litigation
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risk of the number of people that work on construction sites and the fleet of vehicles on the road everyday. Those claims and litigation risks are managed through
safety programs, insurance programs, litigation management at the corporate office and the local level and a network of attorneys and lawfirms throughout the
country. Nevertheless, claims are sometimes made and lawsuits filed and sometimes for amounts in excess of their value or amounts for which they are eventually
resolved. Claims and litigation normally follow a predictable course of time to resolution. Given the size of the company with many contracts and employees,
there can be periods of time where a disproportionate amount of the claims and litigation may be concluded all in the same quarter, or year. If these matters
resolve near the same time then the cumulative effect can be higher than the ordinary level in any one reporting period.
 

Independent of the normal litigation risks, as a result of the Company’s inability to timely file its third quarter 2004 Form 10-Q and the subsequent events,
a class action lawsuit has been filed as well as a shareholder derivative action.
 

The Company has determined to sell all or substantially all of the assets of certain wholly owned subsidiaries. Those sales are being made to facilitate the
business needs and purposes of the organization as a whole. Since the Company was a consolidator of electrical contracting businesses, often the best candidate to
purchase those assets is a previous owner of those assets. That previous owner may still be associated with the subsidiary as an officer of that subsidiary. To
facilitate the desired timing, the sales are being made with more than ordinary reliance on the representations of the purchaser is in those cases often the person
most familiar with the company. There is the potential from selling assets net of liabilities but retaining the entities from which they were sold if the purchaser is
unwilling or unable to perform the transferred liabilities, that the Company may be forced to fulfill obligations that were assigned or sold to others. The Company
would then seek reimbursement from the purchasers.
 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
 Principles of Consolidation
 The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of IES, its wholly owned subsidiaries, and certain investments. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
 

Use of Estimates
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires the use of estimates and
assumptions by management in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used in
the Company’s revenue recognition of construction in progress, allowance for doubtful accounts, realizability of deferred tax assets and self-insured claims
liability.
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
 The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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Inventories
 Inventories consist of parts and supplies held for use in the ordinary course of business and are valued by the Company at the lower of cost or market
generally using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Where shipping and handling costs are borne by the Company, these charges are included in inventory and
charged to cost of services upon use in production or the providing of services.
 

Securities and Equity Investment
 At September 30, 2003 and 2004, the Company had a 21% equity interest in Energy Photovoltaics, Inc. (EPV) of $1.1 million and $0.3 million,
respectively, which was included in other noncurrent assets. The Company accounts for this investment under the equity method of accounting and accordingly
recorded its share of EPV’s losses of $1.7 million, $0.8 million and $0.9 million in the year ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively (See note 3).
Additionally, the Company has notes receivable totaling approximately $1.8 million with EPV at September 30, 2003 and September 30, 2004. The Company
performed a discounted cash flow analysis at September 30, 2004 and determined that no impairment to this investment existed. This investment involves certain
risks involving demand for photovoltaic services. If EPV is unable to deliver its business plan, we could deem this investment impaired and would record a
charge to other expense in the period such impairment, if any, is determined.
 

Through September 30, 2004, the Company had invested $3.5 million under its commitment to EnerTech Capital Partners II L.P. (EnerTech) (See note 14
for further commitments). The carrying value of this Enertech investment at September 30, 2003 and 2004 was $2.5 million and $3.0 million, respectively. This
investment is accounted for on the cost method of accounting and accordingly, the Company does not record unrealized losses for the EnerTech investment that it
believes are temporary in nature. The Company uses available information and may perform discounted cash flow analyses to determine impairment of its
investments, if any. The following table represents the carrying value and unrealized loss balance reconciliation to fair value for the Enertech investment as of
September 30, 2003 and 2004:
 

   

September 30,
2003

  

September 30,
2004

 
Carrying value   $ 2,500  $ 2,977 
Unrealized loss    (983)  (820)
    
Fair value   $ 1,517  $ 2,157 

    
 

Enertech’s investment portfolio from time to time results in unrealized losses reflecting a possible, other-than-temporary, impairment of the Company’s
investment. The Company determined that the potential impairment of the Enertech investment is not other-than-temporary based on the weight of certain
qualitative information. Enertech has generated unrealized gains during two successive quarters of the current fiscal year. Additionally, one of Enertech’s major
portfolio investments has filed a Form S-1 with the Securities and Exchange Commission which increased the value of the portfolio significantly. The Company
intends and has the current ability to hold its investment in Enertech through the time anticipated to recover the amount of the impairment and does not have a
history of turning over these investments and having to recognize unrealized losses. The Company believes, based on the recent improvement in investment
portfolio performance, that the impairment is not severe and its duration will not be prolonged. The Company considers these factors to indicate that the
aforementioned impairment is not other-than-temporary in nature.
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Property and Equipment
 Additions of property and equipment are recorded at cost, and depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortized over the lesser of the life of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset. Depreciation expense
was approximately $16.9 million, $14.6 million and $13.4 million for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.
 

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments, which extend the useful
lives of existing equipment, are capitalized and depreciated. Upon retirement or disposition of property and equipment, the capitalized cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of operations in the caption Other, net.
 

Goodwill
 Effective October 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which establishes new accounting and reporting
requirements for goodwill and other intangible assets. Under SFAS No. 142, all goodwill amortization ceased effective October 1, 2001. Goodwill amortization
for the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2003 would have otherwise been $12.9 million (before the impairment charge). Goodwill attributable to each
reporting unit was tested for impairment by comparing the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying value. Fair value was determined using discounted
cash flows and market multiples. These impairment tests are required to be performed at adoption of SFAS No. 142 and at least annually thereafter. Significant
estimates used in the methodologies include estimates of future cash flows, future short-term and long-term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and
estimates of market multiples for each of the reportable units. On an ongoing basis (absent any impairment indicators), the Company expects to perform
impairment tests annually during the first fiscal quarter.
 

Based on impairment tests performed upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, the Company recognized a charge of $283.3 million ($7.11 per share) in the first
quarter of 2002 to reduce the carrying value of goodwill of the reporting units to its implied fair value. This impairment is a result of adopting a fair value
approach, under SFAS No. 142, to testing impairment of goodwill as compared to the previous method utilized in which evaluations of goodwill impairment were
made using the estimated future undiscounted cash flows compared to the asset’s carrying amount.
 

The impairment was the result of lower forecasted future operating income at the point of adoption than anticipated to result from decreased spending in
the construction industry in all of the Company’s markets. The impairment related to the Company’s operating regions follows (amounts in millions):
 

Southeast   $ 89.2
Northeast    35.2
Gulf Plains    47.4
Central    80.8
West    21.0
Residential    2.6
Divested after adoption    7.1
   
Total   $ 283.3
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Under SFAS No. 142, the impairment adjustment recognized at adoption of the new rules was reflected as a cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle in the statement of operations for the year ended September 30, 2002. Impairment adjustments recognized after adoption, if any, generally are required
to be recognized as operating expenses.
 

On August 13, 2004, the Company announced that it would not timely file results for the three months ended June 30, 2004 on Form 10-Q. There was also
a possibility that factors surrounding certain material weaknesses in internal control may require a restatement of prior periods. Following this announcement, the
Company’s stock price declined 40 percent to $3.93 on August 16, 2004. The Company believes that this decline in stock price plus the jury verdict and
uncertainties surrounding our ability to obtain surety bonds was reflective of a change in our operations that indicated that a possible impairment of the carrying
amount of goodwill existed at September 30, 2004. Therefore, the Company performed a test for impairment and consequently recorded a charge of $99.8
million. This charge is included in arriving at income (loss) from operations for the year ended September 30, 2004. The impairment detailed by our operating
regions follows (amounts in millions):
 

Southeast   $28.8
Northeast    16.3
Gulf Plains    2.1
Central    51.0
West    1.6
   
Total   $99.8

   
 

As of September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, accumulated amortization was approximately $320.7 million, $320.7 million and $425.0 million, respectively.
The carrying amount of goodwill attributable to each reportable segment with goodwill balances and changes therein follows:
 

   

September 30,
2002

  

Divestitures

  

September 30,
2003

  

Impairment
Adjustment

  

September 30,
2004

Commercial and Industrial   $ 140,695  $ 336  $ 140,359  $ 99,798  $ 40,561
Residential    57,525   —     57,525   —     57,525
           
   $ 198,220  $ 336  $ 197,884  $ 99,798  $ 98,086

           
 

Debt Issuance Costs
 Debt issuance costs related to the Company’s credit facility and the senior subordinated notes are included in other noncurrent assets and are amortized to
interest expense over the scheduled maturity of the debt. As of September 30, 2003 and 2004, accumulated amortization of debt issuance costs was approximately
$5.3 million and $6.7 million, respectively. During the year ended September 30, 2004, the Company capitalized approximately $1.7 million of issuance costs
incurred in connection with amending its credit facility.
 

Revenue Recognition
 The Company recognizes revenue when services are performed except when work is being performed under a construction contract. Such contracts
generally provide that the customers accept completion of progress to date and compensate the Company for services rendered measured in terms of units
installed, hours expended or some other measure of progress. Revenues from construction contracts are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method in
accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position (SOP)
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81-1 “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts.” The Company recognizes revenue on signed contracts and
change orders. The Company recognizes revenue on unsigned, verbally approved, change orders where collection is deemed probable. Percentage-of-completion
for construction contracts is measured principally by the percentage of costs incurred and accrued to date for each contract to the estimated total costs for each
contract at completion. The Company generally considers contracts to be substantially complete upon departure from the work site and acceptance by the
customer. Contract costs include all direct material, labor and insurance costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance, such as indirect labor,
supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation costs. Changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated contract costs and profitability and final contract settlements
may result in revisions to costs and income and the effects of these revisions are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. Provisions for
total estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined.
 

The balances billed but not paid by customers pursuant to retainage provisions in construction contracts will be due upon completion of the contracts and
acceptance by the customer. Based on the Company’s experience with similar contracts in recent years, the retention balance at each balance sheet date will be
collected within the subsequent fiscal year.
 

The current asset “Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts” represents revenues recognized in excess of amounts billed
which management believes will be billed and collected within the subsequent year. The current liability “Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
uncompleted contracts” represents billings in excess of revenues recognized.
 

Accounts Receivable and Provision for Doubtful Accounts
 The Company records accounts receivable for all amounts billed and not collected. Generally, the Company does not charge interest on outstanding
accounts receivable, however, from time to time the Company may believe it necessary to charge interest on a case by case basis. Additionally, the Company
provides an allowance for doubtful accounts for specific accounts receivable where collection is considered doubtful as well as for unknown collection issues
based on historical trends. Accounts receivable not collectible are written off as deemed necessary in the period such determination is made.
 

Income Taxes
 The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the future income tax consequences of
temporary differences between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities, and are measured using enacted tax rates and laws.
 

The Company regularly evaluates valuation allowances established for deferred tax assets for which future realization is uncertain. The Company performs
this evaluation at least quarterly at the end of each fiscal year. The estimation of required valuation allowances includes estimates of future taxable income. In
assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2004, the Company considered whether it was more likely than not that some portion or all of
the deferred tax assets would not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the
periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. The Company considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
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liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. If actual future taxable income is different from the estimates,
the Company’s results could be affected.
 

Self-Insurance
 The Company retains the risk for workers’ compensation, employer’s liability, automobile liability, general liability and employee group health claims,
resulting from uninsured deductibles per accident or occurrence which are subject to annual aggregate limits. The Company’s general liability program provides
coverage for bodily injury and property damage neither expected nor intended. Losses up to the deductible amounts are accrued based upon the Company’s
known claims incurred and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported. For the year ended September 30, 2004, management has compiled its historical data
pertaining to the self-insurance experiences and has utilized the services of an actuary to assist in the determination of the ultimate loss associated with the
Company’s self-insurance programs for workers’ compensation, auto and general liability. Management believes that the actuarial valuation provides the best
estimate of the ultimate losses to be expected under these programs and has recorded the present value of the actuarial determined ultimate losses under its
workers’ compensation, auto and general liability programs of $13.0 million and $13.9 million at September 30, 2003 and 2004, respectively. The present value is
based on the expected cash flow to be paid out under the workers’ compensation, automobile and general liability programs discounted for those claims not
expected to be paid within twelve months. The undiscounted ultimate losses related to the workers’ compensation, automobile and general liability programs are
$14.3 million and $15.3 million at September 30, 2003 and 2004, respectively. The utilization of the actuarial valuation resulted in an increase in reserves for self-
insurance losses during the year ended September 30, 2002. The Company recorded a charge associated with this change in estimate of approximately $6.1
million during the fourth quarter of the year ended September 30, 2002. Total expense for these programs was approximately $49.4 million, $40.8 million and
$35.7 million for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively. The present value of all self-insurance reserves for the health, property and
casualty programs recorded at September 30, 2003 and 2004 is $18.2 million and $15.8 million, respectively. The undiscounted ultimate losses of all self-
insurance reserves at September 30, 2003 and 2004 was $19.4 million and $18.7 million, respectively. Based on historical payment patterns, the Company expects
payments of undiscounted ultimate losses to be made as follows (amounts in thousands):
 

Year Ended September 30,     
2005   $ 8,993
2006    3,722
2007    2,517
2008    1,405
2009    724
Thereafter    1,363
   

Total   $ 18,724

   
 

The Company had letters of credit of $18.9 million outstanding at September 30, 2004 to collateralize its self-insurance obligations.
 

Realization of Long-Lived Assets
 In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company evaluates the recoverability of
property and equipment or other assets, if facts and circumstances indicate that any of those assets might be impaired. If an evaluation is required, the estimated
future undiscounted cash flows
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associated with the asset are compared to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if an impairment of such property has occurred. The effect of any impairment
would be to expense the difference between the fair value of such property and its carrying value.
 

Risk Concentration
 Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash deposits and trade accounts
receivable. The Company grants credit, generally without collateral, to its customers, which are generally contractors and homebuilders throughout the United
States. Consequently, the Company is subject to potential credit risk related to changes in business and economic factors throughout the United States within the
construction and homebuilding market. However, the Company generally is entitled to payment for work performed and has certain lien rights in that work.
Further, management believes that its contract acceptance, billing and collection policies are adequate to manage potential credit risk. The Company routinely
maintains cash balances in financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits.
 

The Company had no single customer accounting for more than 10% of its revenues for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004.
 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, receivables from related parties, retainage receivables,
notes receivable, accounts payable, a line of credit, notes and bonds payable and long-term debt. The Company’s senior subordinated notes had a carrying value,
excluding unamortized discount, at September 30, 2003 and 2004 of $247.9 million and $172.9 million, respectively. The fair value of the Company’s senior
subordinated notes at September 30, 2003 and 2004 was $255.3 million and $160.8 million, respectively. The Company utilizes quoted market prices to
determine the fair value of its debt. Other than the senior subordinated notes, the Company believes that the carrying value of financial instruments on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets approximates their fair value.
 

Subsidiary Guarantees
 All of the Company’s operating income and cash flows are generated by its 100% owned subsidiaries, which are the subsidiary guarantors of the
Company’s outstanding 9 3/8% senior subordinated notes due 2009 (the “Senior Subordinated Notes”). The Company is structured as a holding company and
substantially all of its assets and operations are held by its subsidiaries. There are currently no significant restrictions on the Company’s ability to obtain funds
from its subsidiaries by dividend or loan. The parent holding company’s independent assets, revenues, income before taxes and operating cash flows are less than
3% of the consolidated total. The separate financial statements of the subsidiary guarantors are not included herein because (i) the subsidiary guarantors are all of
the direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company; (ii) the subsidiary guarantors have fully and unconditionally, jointly and severally guaranteed the Senior
Subordinated Notes; and (iii) the aggregate assets, liabilities, earnings and equity of the subsidiary guarantors is substantially equivalent to the assets, liabilities,
earnings and equity of the Company on a consolidated basis. As a result, the presentation of separate financial statements and other disclosures concerning the
subsidiary guarantors is not deemed material.
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Earnings per Share
 The following table reconciles the components of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the three years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and
2004 (in thousands, except share information):
 

   

Year Ended September 30,

 

   

2002

  

2003

  

2004

 
   (restated)   (restated)     
Numerator:              

Net income (loss)   $ (275,008) $ 19,437  $ (124,864)

      
Denominator:              

Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic    39,847,591   39,062,776   38,610,326 
Effect of dilutive stock options    —     162,536   —   

      
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding—diluted    39,847,591   39,225,312   38,610,326 

      
Earnings (loss) per share:              

Basic   $ (6.90) $ 0.50  $ (3.23)
Diluted   $ (6.90) $ 0.50  $ (3.23)

 
For the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, stock options of 5.6 million, 4.2 million and 2.0 million, respectively, were excluded from the

computation of diluted earnings per share because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the Company’s common stock.
 

Stock Based Compensation
 The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation arrangements using the intrinsic value method in accordance with the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25—“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”), and related interpretations. Under APB 25, if the exercise price of
employee stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized. The Company’s stock
options have all been granted with exercise prices at fair value, therefore no compensation expense has been recognized under APB 25. During the years ended
September 30, 2002 and 2004, the Company recorded compensation expense of $1.4 million and $0.8 million in connection with a restricted stock award (See
note 11), respectively.
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The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share assuming the compensation costs for IES’ stock option and purchase plans
had been determined using the fair value method at the grant dates amortized on a pro rata basis over the vesting period as required under SFAS No. 123
—“Accounting for Stock- Based Compensation” for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004 (in thousands, except for per share data):
 

   

Year ended September 30,

 

   

2002

  

2003

  

2004

 
   (restated)   (restated)     
Net income (loss), as reported   $ (275,008) $ 19,437  $ (124,864)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net of

related tax effects    875   —     460 
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value

based method for all awards, net of related tax effects    7,296   2,004   1,130 
      
Pro forma net income (loss) for SFAS No. 123   $ (281,430) $ 17,433  $ (125,533)

      
Earnings (loss) per share:              

Basic—as reported   $ (6.90) $ 0.50  $ (3.23)
Basic—pro forma for SFAS No. 123   $ (7.06) $ 0.45  $ (3.25)

Earnings (loss) per share:              
Diluted—as reported   $ (6.90) $ 0.50  $ (3.23)
Diluted—pro forma for SFAS No. 123   $ (7.06) $ 0.44  $ (3.25)

 
The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following subjective

assumptions:
 

   

2002

  

2003

  

2004

 
Expected dividend yield   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected stock price volatility   81.56% 51.94% 68.38%
Weighted average risk free interest rate   3.96% 3.21% 3.71%
Expected life of options   6 years  6 years  6 years 
 

The pro forma disclosures for the year ended September 30, 2002 and 2003 have been adjusted to reflect the impact of cancellations and forfeitures of
stock options issued prior to September 30, 2004. The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in the pro forma disclosure may not be indicative of future amounts as
additional awards in future years are anticipated and because the Black-Scholes option-pricing model involves subjective assumptions which may be materially
different than actual amounts.
 

New Accounting Pronouncements
 In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” (“Interpretation
46”). The objective of Interpretation 46 is to improve the financial reporting by companies involved with variable interest entities. Until Interpretation 46, one
company generally has included another entity in its consolidated financial statements only if it controlled the entity through voting interest. Interpretation 46
changes that by requiring a variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable
interest entity’s activities or entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. The consolidation requirements of Interpretation 46
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apply immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. The consolidation requirements apply to older entities in the first fiscal year or
interim period ending after March 15, 2004. Certain disclosure requirements applied to all financial statements issued after January 31, 2003, regardless of when
the variable interest entity was established. The Company has investments in two firms, EnerTech Capital Partners II, L.P. (EnerTech) and Energy Photovoltaics,
Inc. (EPV) that were considered in light of this interpretation. The Company determined that EPV was an exception to the provisions of Interpretation 46, and that
the Company is not the primary beneficiary of EnerTech and as such, the adoption of Interpretation 46 did not have an impact on the Company’s results of
operations or its financial position.
 

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics
of both Liabilities and Equity,” (“SFAS 150”). SFAS 150 requires that mandatorily redeemable financial instruments issued in the form of shares be classified as
liabilities, and specifies certain measurement and disclosure requirements for such instruments. The provisions of SFAS 150 were effective at the beginning of the
first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company adopted the requirements of SFAS 150 as of July 1, 2003. The adoption did not have a material
impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.
 
3. RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 Effective for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, the Company has determined that the timing of the recognition of revenue and costs on certain of
its long-term construction contracts accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting and that the accounting for one of its investments
warranted revision to the reported results for the six months ended March 31, 2004 and the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2003.
 

The revisions to the recognition of revenues and costs on certain construction contracts relate to errors at three of the Company’s subsidiaries in properly
recording revenues associated with change orders, costs charged to certain contracts and the estimates of costs to complete on certain contracts. Additionally, the
Company determined that its investment in EPV that was previously accounted for under the cost method of accounting for investments beginning in the year
ended September 30, 2002, should have continued to be accounted for under the equity method of accounting for investments. During the year ended September
30, 2002, the Company believed its investment in EPV represented less than 20% of the voting power of EPV and as a result of distributing a portion of the
Company’s holdings to a former executive of the Company based on data utilized by the Company at that time. Accordingly, the Company began using the cost
method of accounting for this investment. In late 2004, the Company determined that the data used to calculate its interest in EPV was not accurate, and in fact,
the Company’s investment in EPV exceeded 20% of the voting power of EPV during the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004, and therefore, should
have been accounted for utilizing the equity method of accounting for investments. The equity method of accounting for investments requires investors to record
their proportionate share of the investees profits and losses into their financial statements. The cost method of accounting for investments does not require this
treatment. The total effects of all revisions to reported results for the six months ended March 31, 2004 and the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 are
summarized in the tables that follow.
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Six Months Ended March 31, 2004 (Unaudited)

 

   

As Reported

  

Contract
Adjustments

  

Investment
Adjustments

  

As Restated

 
Statement of Operations Data:                  
Revenues   $ 703,692  $ (3,491) $ —    $ 700,201 
Cost of services    605,196   1,057   —     606,253 
      
Gross profit    98,496   (4,548)  —     93,948 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    71,359   —     —     71,359 
      
Income (loss) from operations    27,137   (4,548)  —     22,589 
Interest and other expense, net    18,027   —     432   18,459 
      
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle    9,110   (4,548)  (432)  4,130 
Benefit for income taxes    (2,664)  (1,796)  (171)  (4,631)
      
Net income (loss)   $ 11,774  $ (2,752) $ (261) $ 8,761 

      
Basic earnings (loss) per share   $ 0.31  $ (0.07) $ (0.01) $ 0.23 

      
Diluted earnings (loss) per share   $ 0.30  $ (0.07) $ (0.01) $ 0.22 

      

   

March 31, 2004

 

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

  

As Reported

  

Contract
Adjustments

  

Investment
Adjustments

  

As Restated

 
Assets:                  
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 19,043  $ —    $ —    $ 19,043 
Accounts receivable (net)    296,353   —     —     296,353 
Cost and estimated earnings in excess of

Billings on uncompleted contracts    52,601   (3,379)  —     49,222 
Inventories    23,817   —     —     23,817 
Prepaid expenses and other current Assets    26,526   —     —     26,526 
Property and equipment, net    48,734   —     —     48,734 
Goodwill, net    197,884   —     —     197,884 
Other noncurrent assets, net    31,530   1,846   (1,848)  31,528 
      

Total assets   $ 696,488  $ (1,533) $ (1,848) $ 693,107 

      
Liabilities:                  
Current maturities of long-term debt   $ 7,286  $ —    $ —    $ 7,286 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    121,748   1,057   —     122,805 
Billings in excess of cost and estimated Earnings on uncompleted contracts    37,095   1,871   —     38,966 
Long-term debt, net of current maturities    42,967   —     —     42,967 
Senior subordinated notes    173,244   —     —     173,244 
Other noncurrent liabilities    33,081   (647)  —     32,434 
      

Total liabilities   $ 415,421  $ 2,281  $ —    $ 417,702 
Stockholders’ equity    281,067   (3,814)  (1,848)  275,405 
      

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 696,488  $ (1,533) $ (1,848) $ 693,107 
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Year Ended September 30, 2003

 

   

As Reported

  

Contract
Adjustments

  

Investment
Adjustments

  

As Restated

 
Statement of Operations Data:                  
Revenues   $1,448,553  $ (790) $ —    $1,447,763 
Cost of services    1,241,330   —     —     1,241,330 
      
Gross profit    207,223   (790)  —     206,433 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    153,651   —     —     153,651 
      
Income (loss) from operations    53,572   (790)  —     52,782 
Interest and other expense, net    (24,963)  —     (805)  (25,768)
      
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle    28,609   (790)  (805)  27,014 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes    8,179   (314)  (288)  7,577 
      
Net income (loss)   $ 20,430  $ (476) $ (517) $ 19,437 

      
Basic earnings (loss) per share   $ 0.52  $ (0.01) $ (0.01) $ 0.50 

      
Diluted earnings (loss) per share   $ 0.52  $ (0.01) $ (0.01) $ 0.50 

      

   

September 30, 2003

 

Consolidated Balance Sheet

  

As Reported

  

Contract
Adjustments

  

Investment
Adjustments

  

As Restated

 
Assets:                  
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 40,201  $ —    $ —    $ 40,201 
Accounts receivable (net)    314,474   —     —     314,474 
Cost and estimated earnings in excess of Billings on uncompleted contracts    48,256   (1,257)  —     46,999 
Inventories    20,473   —     —     20,473 
Prepaid expenses and other current Assets    14,427   —     —     14,427 
Property and equipment, net    52,697   —     —     52,697 
Goodwill, net    197,884   —     —     197,884 
Other noncurrent assets, net    28,870   50   (1,588)  27,332 
      

Total assets   $ 717,282  $ (1,207) $ (1,588) $ 714,487 

      
Liabilities:                  
Current maturities of long-term debt   $ 256  $ —    $ —    $ 256 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses.    138,143   —     —     138,143 
Billings in excess of cost and estimated Earnings on uncompleted contracts    41,913   502   —     42,415 
Long-term debt, net of current maturities    195   —     —     195 
Senior subordinated notes    247,927   —     —     247,927 
Other noncurrent liabilities    21,291   (647)  —     20,644 
      

Total liabilities   $ 449,725  $ (145) $ —    $ 449,580 
Stockholders’ equity    267,557   (1,062)  (1,588)  264,907 
      

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 717,282  $ (1,207) $ (1,588) $ 714,487 
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Year Ended September 30, 2002

 

   

As Reported

  

Contract
Adjustments

  

Investment
Adjustments

  

As Restated

 
Statement of Operations Data:                  
Revenues   $1,475,430  $ (969) $ —    $1,474,461 
Cost of services    1,253,844   (813)  —     1,253,031 
      
Gross profit    221,586   (156)  —     221,430 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    174,184   813   —     174,997 
Restructuring charges    5,556   —     —     5,556 
      
Income (loss) from operations    41,846   (969)  —     40,877 
Interest and other expense, net    (25,738)  —     (1,667)  (27,405)
      
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle   $ 16,108  $ (969) $ (1,667) $ 13,472 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes    6,175   (383)  (596)  5,196 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax    (283,284)  —     —     (283,284)
      
Net loss   $ (273,351) $ (586) $ (1,071) $ (275,008)

      
Basic earnings (loss) per share:                  
Basic earnings (loss) per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ 0.25  $ (0.01) $ (0.03) $ 0.21 

      
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ (7.11)     $    $ (7.11)

      
Basic earnings (loss) per share   $ (6.86) $ (0.01) $ (0.03) $ (6.90)

      
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:                  
Diluted earnings (loss) per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle   $ 0.25  $ (0.01) $ (0.03) $ 0.21 

      
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ (7.11) $    $    $ (7.11)

      
Diluted earnings (loss) per share   $ (6.86) $ (0.01) $ (0.03) $ (6.90)
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4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS:
 Purchases
 On February 27, 2003, the Company purchased the assets of Riviera Electric LLC, an electrical contractor located in the state of Colorado, out of a
bankruptcy auction of a prior competitor. The total consideration paid in this transaction was approximately $2.7 million, comprised entirely of cash, net of cash
acquired. The fair value of the tangible net assets acquired exceeded the total consideration paid. As a result, the long-term fixed assets of the acquisition were
reduced to zero. The purchase price was allocated as follows (amounts in thousands):
 

Accounts receivable, net   $ 11,643 
Retention    3,884 
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted projects and other    922 
Less: Accounts payable and accrued expenses    (10,214)
Less: Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted projects and other    (3,512)
   
Cash paid, net of cash acquired   $ 2,723 

   
 

The results of operations of Riviera are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements from February 27, 2003 through September 30, 2004.
 

Pro Forma Presentation
 The unaudited pro forma data presented below reflect the results of operations of IES and the acquisition of Riviera Electric LLC assuming the transaction
was completed on October 1, 2001 (in thousands):
 

   

Year ended September 30,

   

2002

  

2003

   (unaudited)   (unaudited)
Revenues   $ 1,556,742  $ 1,482,428

    
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ 13,768  $ 20,157

    
Net income (loss)   $ (269,516) $ 20,157

    
Basic earnings per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ 0.35  $ 0.52

    
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ (7.11) $ 0.00

    
Basic earnings (loss) per share   $ (6.76) $ 0.52

    
Diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ 0.35  $ 0.51

    
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle   $ (7.11) $ 0.00

    
Diluted earnings (loss) per share   $ (6.76) $ 0.51

    
 

The unaudited pro forma data summarized above also reflects pro forma adjustments primarily related to: reductions in general and administrative expenses
for contractually agreed reductions in compensation programs
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and additional income tax expense based on the Company’s effective income tax rate. The unaudited pro forma financial data does not purport to represent what
the Company’s combined results of operations would actually have been if such transactions had in fact occurred on October 1, 2001, and are not necessarily
representative of the Company’s results of operations for any future period.
 

Divestitures
 On July 25, 2002, the Company sold all of the stock of two of its operating companies. The proceeds from the sale were $7.5 million in cash and 241,224
shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company recorded a pre-tax gain of $2.1 million associated with this sale that is recorded in other income.
 

On October 8, 2002, the Company sold all of the stock of one of its operating companies. The proceeds from the sale were $1.1 million in cash and 70,330
shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company recorded a pre-tax gain of less than $0.1 million associated with this sale that is recorded in other income.
 

On July 1, 2003, the Company sold all of the stock of one of its operating companies. The proceeds from the sale were $1.1 million in cash. The Company
recorded a pre-tax gain of $0.4 million associated with this sale that is recorded in other income.
 

In connection with the dispositions discussed above, the net pre-tax gain was determined as follows for the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2003 (in
thousands):
 

   

2002

  

2003

 
Book value of assets divested   $10,783  $2,719 
Liabilities divested    (3,987)  (675)
    

Net assets divested    6,796   2,044 
    
Cash received    7,549   2,155 
Common stock received    1,392   270 
    

Total consideration received    8,941   2,425 
    

Pre-tax gain   $ 2,145  $ 381 

    
 

Had the dispositions discussed above been completed on October 1, 2001, the results of the Company for the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2003
would have excluded revenues of $33.0 million and $0.1 million, respectively and losses from operations of $0.3 million and $0.0 million, respectively.
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5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
 Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):
 

 

  
Estimated
useful lives

in years
  

September 30,

 

    

2003

  

2004

 
Land   N/A   $ 2,820  $ 2,820 
Buildings   5-32    6,873   6,958 
Transportation equipment   3-5    29,221   25,701 
Machinery and equipment   3-10    53,692   53,742 
Leasehold improvements   5-32    13,658   13,744 
Furniture and fixtures   5-7    8,815   8,324 
       
       115,079   111,289 
Less-Accumulated depreciation and amortization       (62,382)  (66,428)
       

Property and equipment, net      $ 52,697  $ 44,861 

       
 
6. DETAIL OF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS:
 Activity in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts receivable consists of the following (in thousands):
 

   

September 30,

 

   

2003

  

2004

 
Balance at beginning of period   $ 6,262  $ 5,425 
Additions to costs and expenses    2,277   3,614 
Additions for acquisitions    411   —   
Deductions for uncollectible receivables written off, net of recoveries    (3,514)  (4,520)
Deductions for divestitures    (11)  —   
    
Balance at end of period   $ 5,425  $ 4,519 

    
 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   

September 30,

   

2003

  

2004

Accounts payable, trade   $ 77,598  $ 83,190
Accrued compensation and benefits    24,809   23,935
Accrual for self-insurance liabilities    18,162   15,827
Accrual for legal settlements    —     9,253
Other accrued expenses    17,574   17,280
     
   $ 138,143  $ 149,485
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Contracts in progress are as follows (in thousands):
 

   

September 30,

 

   

2003

  

2004

 
Costs incurred on contracts in progress   $ 1,131,809  $ 1,298,175 
Estimated earnings    148,837   133,042 
    
    1,280,646   1,431,217 
Less-Billings to date    (1,276,062)  (1,426,990)
    
   $ 4,584  $ 4,227 

    
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts   $ 46,999  $ 41,816 
Less-Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts    (42,415)  (37,589)
    
   $ 4,584  $ 4,227 

    
 
7. DEBT:
 Debt consists of the following (in thousands):
 

   

September 30,

 

   

2003

  

2004

 
Secured credit facility and term loan with a group of lending institutions, due February 27, 2008, with a weighted average interest

rate of 4.39%   $ —    $ 57,929 
Senior Subordinated Notes, due February 1, 2009, bearing interest at 9.375% with an effective interest rate of 9.50%    137,885   62,885 
Senior Subordinated Notes, due February 1, 2009, bearing interest at 9.375% with an effective interest rate of 10.00%    110,000   110,000 
Other    451   144 
    
    248,336   230,958 
Less-current maturities of long-term debt    (256)  (42,995)
Less-unamortized discount on Senior Subordinated Notes    (3,198)  (2,307)
Fair value of unamortized portion of terminated interest rate hedges    3,240   2,630 
    

Total long-term debt   $248,122  $188,286 

    
 

Future payments due on debt at September 30, 2004 are as follows (in thousands):
 

2005   $ 42,995
2006    78
2007    —  
2008    15,000
2009    172,885
Thereafter    —  
   

Total   $ 230,958
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Credit Facility
 On February 27, 2004, the Company amended and restated the $125.0 million revolving credit facility to a $125.0 million revolving credit facility and a
$50.0 million term loan led by Bank One, NA. The Company used the proceeds from the term loan and available cash to redeem $75.0 million principal amount
of the Company’s long term bonds. Since February 27, 2004, and through December 10, 2004, the Company amended the credit facility four times. The
amendments reduced the facility commitment, provided for covenants or waivers that permit the Company to file the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2004 on or before December 15, 2004, permitted the Company to issue senior convertible notes, specified mandatory debt reduction amounts by quarter, adjusted
and redefined financial covenants on a monthly basis beginning December 31, 2004, increased pricing, established the borrowing base at 70 percent of qualifying
receivables and permit the Company to release certain collateral related to bonded jobs to companies providing surety bonding. These amendments required the
payments of fees upon their execution. These fees are capitalized as deferred financing costs and amortized over the life of the facility. The credit facility, as
amended, matures on January 13, 2006. The Company has the ability to extend the facility until January 12, 2007 upon the payment of a fee if certain financial
conditions are met. The term loan of the credit facility is due by September 30, 2005. At September 30, 2004, the term loan had outstanding borrowings of $42.9
million. Amounts borrowed under the credit facility, as amended, bear interest at an annual rate of the bank’s prime rate plus two percent. Fees of one percent per
annum are assessed on the outstanding credit facility commitments as of the beginning of each quarter beginning January 1, 2005. The Company’s direct and
indirect subsidiaries guarantee the repayment of all amounts due under the facility and the facility is secured by a first perfected security interest in all the assets
of the Company and those subsidiaries, including all of the outstanding capital shares of the capital stock of those subsidiaries. Among other restrictions, the
financial covenants include minimum EBITDA, as defined in the credit agreement, requirements for core and all operations, a maximum senior secured debt to
EBITDA ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio.
 

As of September 30, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants as they pertain to the Credit Facility, as amended.
 

As of September 30, 2004, the Company had $42.9 million outstanding under the term loan portion of its Credit Facility, and $15.0 outstanding under the
revolving credit line portion of its Credit Facility, letters of credit outstanding under its Credit Facility of $25.8 million, $0.1 million of other borrowings and
available borrowing capacity under its Credit Facility of $41.3 million.
 

Senior Subordinated Notes
 The Company has outstanding two different issues of senior subordinated notes with similar terms. The notes bear interest at 9 3/8% and will mature on
February 1, 2009. Interest is paid on the notes on February 1 and August 1 of each year. The notes are unsecured senior subordinated obligations and are
subordinated to all other existing and future senior indebtedness. The notes are guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by all the Company’s subsidiaries.
Under the terms of the notes, the Company is required to comply with various affirmative and negative covenants including (1) restrictions on additional
indebtedness, and (2) restrictions on liens, guarantees and dividends. During the year ended September 30, 2002, the Company retired approximately $27.1
million of these senior subordinated notes. In connection with these transactions, the Company recorded a gain of $1.0 million. This gain is recorded in interest
and other expense, net during the year ended September 30, 2002 in accordance with SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” adopted July 1, 2002. During the year ended September 30, 2004, the Company redeemed
$75.0 million principal amount of its senior subordinated notes, paying a call premium of 4.688%, or $3.5 million. This premium along with a write off of
previously capitalized deferred
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financing costs of $1.6 million was recorded as a loss in other income and expense in accordance with SFAS No. 145. At September 30, 2004, the Company had
$172.9 million in outstanding senior subordinated notes.
 

Interest Rate Swaps
 The Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement in August 2001, designated as a fair value hedge, in order to minimize the risks and cost
associated with its financing activities. The interest rate swap agreement had a notional amount of $100.0 million and was established to manage the interest rate
risk of the senior subordinated note obligations. Under the swap agreement, the Company paid the counterparty variable rate interest (3-month LIBOR plus
3.49%) and the counterparty paid the Company fixed rate interest of 9.375% on a semiannual basis over the life of the instrument through February 1, 2009.
Pursuant to SFAS No. 133, as amended, such interest rate swap contract was reflected at fair value on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and the related
portion of fixed-rate debt being hedged was reflected at an amount equal to the sum of its carrying value plus an adjustment representing the change in fair value
of the debt obligation attributable to the interest rate being hedged. The net effect of this accounting on the Company’s operating results is that interest expense on
the portion of fixed-rate debt being hedged was generally recorded based on variable interest rates. The interest rate swap was considered to be perfectly effective
because it qualified for the “short-cut” method under SFAS No. 133 and therefore there was no net change in fair value to be recognized in income. At September
30, 2001 the fair value of this derivative was $3.2 million and was included in other noncurrent assets. The Company terminated this contract in February 2002.
The Company received cash equal to the fair value of this derivative of $1.5 million, which is being amortized over the remaining life of the bonds.
 

The Company entered into a new interest rate swap agreement in February 2002, designated as a fair value hedge, in order to minimize the risks and cost
associated with its financing activities. The interest rate swap agreement had a notional amount of $100.0 million and was established to manage the interest rate
risk of the senior subordinated note obligations. Under the swap agreement, the Company paid the counterparty variable rate interest (3-month trailing LIBOR
plus 3.49%) and the counterparty paid the Company fixed rate interest of 9.375% on a semiannual basis over the life of the instrument. Pursuant to SFAS No.
133, as amended, such interest rate swap contract was reflected at fair value on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and the related portion of fixed-rate
debt being hedged is reflected at an amount equal to the sum of its carrying value plus an adjustment representing the change in fair value of the debt obligation
attributable to the interest rate being hedged. The net effect of this accounting on the Company’s operating results was that interest expense on the portion of
fixed-rate debt being hedged was generally recorded based on variable interest rates. The interest rate swap was considered to be perfectly effective because it
qualified for the “short-cut” method under SFAS No. 133 and therefore there was no net change in fair value to be recognized in income. The Company
terminated this contract in August 2002. The Company received cash equal to the fair value of this derivative of $2.5 million, which is being amortized over the
remaining life of the bonds. At September 30, 2003 and 2004 the Company had no outstanding interest rate swap contracts.
 

The following table presents the balance sheet details of the Senior Subordinated Notes (in thousands):
 

   

September 30,

 

   

2003

  

2004

 
Senior Subordinated Notes, due February 1, 2009   $247,885  $172,885 
Less: Unamortized discount on Senior Subordinated Notes    (3,198)  (2,307)
Add: Unamortized portion of interest rate hedge    3,240   2,630 
    
   $247,927  $173,208 
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8. LEASES:
 The Company leases various facilities under noncancelable operating leases. For a discussion of leases with certain related parties see Note 12. Rental
expense for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004 was approximately $15.4 million, $14.6 million and $16.6 million respectively. Future minimum
lease payments under these noncancelable operating leases with terms in excess of one year are as follows (in thousands):
 

Year Ended September 30,     
2005   $14,261
2006    9,703
2007    6,326
2008    3,795
2009    2,911
Thereafter    —  
   

Total   $36,996

   
 
9. INCOME TAXES:
 Federal and state income tax provisions are as follows (in thousands):
 

   

Year Ended September 30,

   

2002

  

2003

  

2004

   (restated)  (restated)   
Federal:             

Current   $ —    $ —    $ 1,173
Deferred    5,714   6,624   8,624

State:             
Current    —     —     952
Deferred    (518)  953   335

      
   $ 5,196  $ 7,577  $11,084

      
 

Actual income tax expense differs from income tax expense computed by applying the U.S. federal statutory corporate rate of 35 percent to income before
provision for income taxes as follows (in thousands):
 

   

Year Ended September 30,

 

   

2002

  

2003

  

2004

 
   (restated)  (restated)    
Provision at the statutory rate   $ 4,717  $ 9,454  $(39,823)
Increase resulting from:              

State income taxes, net of benefit for federal deduction    237   258   —   
Non-deductible expenses    997   700   956 
Change in valuation allowance    —     —     27,716 
Contingent tax liabilities    —     457   —   
Non-deductible goodwill impairment    —     —     31,004 
Other    —     —     64 

Decrease resulting from:              
Utilization of state net operating losses    (755)  —     —   
Change in valuation allowance    —     (3,292)  (6,262)
State income taxes, net of federal deduction    —     —     (1,648)
Contingent tax liability    —     —     (923)

     
   $ 5,196  $ 7,577  $ 11,084 
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Deferred income tax provisions result from temporary differences in the recognition of income and expenses for financial reporting purposes and for
income tax purposes. The income tax effects of these temporary differences, representing deferred income tax assets and liabilities, result principally from the
following (in thousands):
 

   

Year Ended September 30,

 

   

      2003      

  

      2004      

 
   (restated)     
Deferred income tax assets:          

Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 2,062  $ 1,666 
Goodwill    9,123   12,532 
Accrued expenses    5,063   7,248 
Net operating loss carry forward    4,262   9,990 
Various reserves    1,316   470 
Equity adjustment in affiliate    884   1,185 
Other    1,474   1,707 

    
Subtotal    24,184   34,798 

Less valuation allowance    (7,800)  (29,254)
    

Total deferred income tax assets    16,384   5,544 
    
Deferred income tax liabilities:          

Property and equipment    (4,308)  (4,822)
Deferred contract revenue and other    (591)  (250)

    
Total deferred income tax liabilities    (4,899)  (5,072)

    
Net deferred income tax assets   $ 11,485  $ 472 

    
 

In 2002, the Company adopted a tax accounting method change that allowed it to deduct goodwill for income tax purposes that had previously been
classified as non-deductible. The accounting method change resulted in additional amortizable tax basis in goodwill. The Company believes the realization of the
additional tax basis in goodwill is less than probable and has not recorded a deferred tax asset. Although a deferred tax asset has not been recorded, as of
September 30, 2004, the Company has derived a cumulative cash tax reduction of $10.9 million from the change in tax accounting method and the subsequent
amortization of the additional tax goodwill. The Company has provided a tax reserve for the cumulative cash tax reduction. In addition, the amortization of the
additional tax goodwill has resulted in additional federal and state net operating loss carry forwards of $40.6 and $26.0 million, respectively. The Company
believes the realization of the additional net operating loss carry forwards is less than probable and has not recorded a deferred tax asset. The Company has
$108.7 million of tax basis in the additional tax goodwill that remains to be amortized. As of September 30, 2004, approximately 10 years remain to be amortized.
 

As of September 30, 2004, the Company had available approximately $55.7 million of federal net tax operating loss carry forward for federal income tax
purposes including $40.6 million resulting from the additional amortization of tax goodwill. This carry forward, which may provide future tax benefits, begin to
expire in 2011. The Company also had available approximately $143.8 million of net tax operating loss carry forwards for state income tax purposes including
$26.0 million resulting from the additional amortization of tax goodwill which begin to expire in 2005.
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In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2004, the Company considered whether it was more likely than not that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company’s realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which these temporary differences become deductible. However, SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” places considerably more
weight on historical results and less weight on future projections when there is negative evidence such as cumulative pretax losses in recent years. The Company
incurred a cumulative pretax loss of $73.3 million for September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004 including goodwill impairment of $99.8 million in the year ended
September 30, 2004 and excluding $283.3 million resulting from the adoption of SFAS 142 in the year ended September 30, 2002. In the absence of specific
favorable evidence of sufficient weight to offset the negative evidence of the cumulative pretax loss, the Company has provided valuation allowances of
$23.5 million for certain federal deferred tax assets and $5.8 million for certain state deferred tax assets. The Company believes that $5.0 million of federal
deferred tax assets will be realized by offsetting reversing deferred tax liabilities. The Company believes that $0.5 million of state deferred tax assets will be
realized for certain non-unitary, non-consolidated and non-combined state tax returns and valuation allowances were not provided for these assets. During the
quarters ended December 31, 2003 and March 31, 2004 the Company believed that certain deferred tax assets for which valuation allowances were established
would be realized by the Company and $1.4 and $4.9 million of tax effected valuation allowances were released, respectively. The Company will evaluate the
appropriateness of its remaining deferred tax assets and valuation allowances on a quarterly basis.
 

The Company has adopted positions that a taxing authority may view differently. The Company believes its reserves of $13.5 million recorded in other
non-current liabilities are adequate in the event the positions are not ultimately upheld. The timing of the payment of these reserves is not currently known and
would be based on the outcome of a possible review by a taxing authority. Statutes of limitations will begin to expire June 15, 2006 and thereafter.
 

The net deferred income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands):
 

   

September 30,

 

   

2003

  

2004

 
   (restated)     
Current deferred income taxes:          

Assets   $ 6,373  $ 286 
Liabilities    (872)  (250)

    
    5,501   36 
    
Noncurrent deferred income taxes:          

Assets   $ 9,621  $ 5,258 
Liabilities    (3,637)  (4,822)

    
    5,984   436 
    
Net deferred income tax assets   $11,485  $ 472 

    
 
10. OPERATING SEGMENTS
 The Company follows SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” Certain information is disclosed, per SFAS
No. 131, based on the way management organizes financial information for making operating decisions and assessing performance.
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The Company’s reportable segments are strategic business units that offer products and services to two distinct customer groups. They are managed
separately because each business requires different operating and marketing strategies. These segments, which contain different economic characteristics, are
managed through geographically-based regions.
 
The Company manages and measures performance of its business in two distinctive operating segments; commercial and industrial, and residential. The
commercial and industrial segment provides electrical and communications contracting, design, installation, renovation, engineering and upgrades and
maintenance and replacement services in facilities such as office buildings, high-rise apartments and condominiums, theaters, restaurants, hotels, hospitals and
critical-care facilities, school districts, manufacturing and processing facilities, military installations, airports, refineries, petrochemical and power plants, outside
plant, network enterprise and switch network customers. The residential segment consists of electrical and communications contracting, installation, replacement
and renovation services in single family and low-rise multifamily housing units. Corporate includes expenses associated with the Company’s home office and
regional infrastructure.
 

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The Company evaluates
performance based on income from operations of the respective business units prior to home office expenses. Management allocates costs between segments for
selling, general and administrative expenses, goodwill amortization, depreciation expense, capital expenditures and total assets.
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Segment information for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004 are as follows (in thousands):
 

   

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002 

 
   (restated)  

   

Commercial
and Industrial

  

Residential

  

Corporate

  

Total

 
Revenues   $ 1,192,422  $ 282,039  $ —    $ 1,474,461 
Cost of services    1,032,665   220,366   —     1,253,031 
       
Gross profit    159,757   61,673   —     221,430 

Selling, general and administrative    124,271   27,053   23,673   174,997 
Restructuring Charges    —     —     5,556   5,556 
       
Income (loss) from operations   $ 35,486  $ 34,620  $ (29,229) $ 40,877 

       
Other data:                  
Depreciation and amortization expense   $ 13,921  $ 885  $ 3,827  $ 18,633 
Capital expenditures    8,301   753   2,841   11,895 
Total assets    519,897   89,896   101,737   711,530 

   

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003 

 
   (restated)  

   

Commercial
and Industrial

  

Residential

  

Corporate

  

Total

 
Revenues   $ 1,171,596  $ 276,167  $ —    $ 1,447,763 
Cost of services    1,023,151   218,179   —     1,241,330 
       
Gross profit    148,445   57,988   —     206,433 
Selling, general and administrative    101,096   33,110   19,445   153,651 
       
Income (loss) from operations   $ 47,349  $ 24,878  $ (19,445) $ 52,782 

       
Other data:                  
Depreciation and amortization expense   $ 11,419  $ 1,133  $ 3,763  $ 16,315 
Capital expenditures    5,345   891   2,491   8,727 
Total assets    503,863   108,204   102,420   714,487 

   

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

 

   

Commercial
And Industrial

  

Residential

  

Corporate

  

Total

 
Revenues   $ 1,114,093  $ 310,007  $ —    $ 1,424,100 
Cost of services    999,992   250,178   —     1,250,170 
       
Gross profit    114,101   59,829   —     173,930 

Selling, general and administrative    99,868   33,898   25,140   158,906 
Goodwill impairment charge    99,798   —     —     99,798 
       
Income (loss) from operations   $ (85,565) $ 25,931  $ (25,140) $ (84,774)

       
Other data:                  
Depreciation and amortization expense   $ 9,876  $ 1,167  $ 2,311  $ 13,354 
Capital expenditures    3,463   1,082   1,960   6,505 
Total assets    396,672   107,205   77,056   580,933 
 

The Company does not have significant operations or long-lived assets in countries outside of the United States.
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11. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
 Restricted Voting Common Stock
 The shares of restricted voting common stock have rights similar to shares of common stock except that such shares are entitled to elect one member of the
board of directors and to not otherwise vote with respect to the election of directors and are entitled to one-half of one vote for each share held on all other
matters. Each share of restricted voting common stock will convert into common stock upon disposition by the holder of such shares.
 

Common Stock Repurchase Programs
 During the year ended September 30, 2003, the Company completed a 2 million share repurchase program. The Company used approximately $10.2
million in cash generated form operations to repurchase shares during the year ended September 30, 2003 for this program. On November 5, 2003, we
commenced a $13 million share repurchase program. We used approximately $4.6 million in cash generated from operations to repurchase 549,200 shares during
the year ended September 30, 2004 under this program.
 

1997 Stock Plan
 In September 1997, the Company’s board of directors and stockholders approved the Company’s 1997 Stock Plan (the “Plan”), which provides for the
granting or awarding of incentive or nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted or phantom stock and other incentive awards to directors,
officers, key employees and consultants of the Company. The number of shares authorized and reserved for issuance under the Plan is 15 percent of the aggregate
number of shares of common stock outstanding. The terms of the option awards will be established by the compensation committee of the Company’s board of
directors. Options generally expire between seven and ten years from the date of grant, one year following termination of employment due to death or disability,
or three months following termination of employment by means other than death or disability.
 

Directors’ Stock Plan
 In September 1997, the Company’s board of directors and stockholders approved the 1997 Directors’ Stock Plan (the “Directors’ Plan”), which provides
for the granting or awarding of stock options to nonemployee directors. In May 2000, the Company’s board of directors amended the Directors’ Plan. The number
of shares authorized and reserved for issuance under the Directors’ Plan is 250,000 shares. Each nonemployee director is granted options to purchase 3,000 shares
at the time of an initial election of such director. In addition, each director will be automatically granted options to purchase 3,000 shares annually at each
September 30 on which such director remains a director. All options have an exercise price based on the fair market value at the date of grant, are immediately
vested and expire 10 years from the date of the grant. In the event that the director ceases to serve as a member of the board for any reason the options must be
exercised within one year.
 

1999 Incentive Compensation Plan
 In November 1999, the Company’s board of directors adopted the 1999 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “1999 Plan”). The 1999 Plan, as amended,
authorizes the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors to grant eligible participants of the Company awards in the form of
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock or other stock based awards. The Company has up to 5.5 million shares of common stock authorized for
issuance under the 1999 Plan.
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In March 2000, the Company granted 400,000 restricted stock awards under this stock plan to an employee. This award was vested in equal installments on
March 20th of each year through 2004, provided the recipient was still employed by the Company. The market value of the underlying stock on the date of grant
for this award was $2.3 million, which was recognized as compensation expense over the related vesting periods. The award was accelerated on its terms, and
became fully vested and was fully amortized during the year ended September 30, 2002.
 

In December 2003, the Company granted a restricted stock award of 242,295 shares under the 1999 Plan to certain employees. This award vests in equal
installments on December 1, 2004 and 2005, provided the recipient is still employed by the Company. The market value of the stock on the date of grant for this
award was $2.0 million, which will be recognized as compensation expense over the related two year vesting period. During the year ended September 30, 2004,
the Company amortized $0.8 million to expense in connection with this award.
 

The following table summarizes activity under the Company’s stock option and incentive compensation plans:
 

   

Shares

  

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

Outstanding, September 30, 2001   6,929,121  $ 10.06

    
Options Granted   2,073,069   4.60
Exercised   (434,471)  1.51
Forfeited and Cancelled   (2,033,039)  8.33

    
Outstanding, September 30, 2002   6,534,680  $ 9.39

    
Options Granted   21,000   6.90
Exercised   (392,273)  5.32
Forfeited and Cancelled   (800,566)  12.20

    
Outstanding, September 30, 2003   5,362,841  $ 9.28

    
Options Granted   303,226   1.20
Exercised   (855,599)  5.17
Forfeited and Cancelled   (643,677)  10.02

    
Outstanding, September 30, 2004   4,166,791  $ 9.42

    
Exercisable, September 30, 2002   3,314,864  $ 11.70

    
Exercisable, September 30, 2003   3,747,774  $ 10.93

    
Exercisable, September 30, 2004   3,469,828  $ 10.68

    
 

The table below summarizes options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2004:
 

Range of Exercise
Prices

  

Outstanding
as of

September 30, 2004

  

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life

  

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

  

Exercisable
as of

September 30, 2004

  

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

$  0.0000-$  4.6240  886,190  4.6  $ 2.74  414,499  $ 3.71
$  4.6250-$  6.9000  1,229,920  6.2  $ 5.68  1,023,050  $ 5.76
$  6.9100-$10.3000  26,500  5.5  $ 8.90  20,600  $ 8.95
$10.3100-$15.4000  1,591,283  3.6  $ 13.63  1,578,781  $ 13.65
$15.4100-$22.1250  432,898  3.9  $ 18.25  432,898  $ 18.25
           
   4,166,791  4.6  $ 9.42  3,469,828  $ 10.68
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Options granted during the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004 had weighted average fair values per option of $1.91, $3.63 and $0.20,
respectively.
 

Unexercised options expire at various dates from January 27, 2008 through October 1, 2014.
 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
 In February 2000, the Company’s stockholders approved the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), which provides for the sale of
common stock to participants as defined at a price equal to the lower of 85% of the Company’s closing stock price at the beginning or end of the option period, as
defined. The number of shares of common stock authorized and reserved for issuance under the ESPP is 1.0 million shares. The purpose of the ESPP is to provide
an incentive for employees of the Company to acquire a proprietary interest in the Company through the purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock. The
ESPP is intended to qualify as an “Employee Stock Purchase Plan” under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). The
provisions of the ESPP are construed in a manner to be consistent with the requirements of that section of the Code. During the years ended September 30, 2002,
2003 and 2004, the Company issued 207,642, 55,742 and 248,982 shares pursuant to the ESPP, respectively. For purposes of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” estimated compensation cost as it relates to the ESPP was computed for the fair value of the employees’ purchase rights using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions for 2002: expected dividend yield of 0.00%, expected stock price volatility of 81.56%,
weighted average risk free interest rate of 3.96% and an expected life of 0.5 years. The weighted average fair value per share of these purchase rights granted in
2002 was approximately $1.54. The following assumptions were used for 2003: expected dividend yield of 0.00%, expected stock price volatility of 51.94%,
weighted average risk free interest rate of 3.21% and an expected life of 0.5 years. The weighted average fair value per share of these purchase rights granted in
2003 was approximately $0.89. The following assumptions were used for 2004: expected dividend yield of 0.00%, expected stock price volatility of 33.09%,
weighted average risk free interest rate of 1.32% and an expected life of 0.5 years. The weighted average fair value per share of these purchase rights granted in
2004 was approximately $1.49.
 
12. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
 The Company has transactions in the normal course of business with certain affiliated companies. The Company has a note receivable from an affiliate,
EPV, of $1.8 million as of September 30, 2003 and 2004 and believes this loan is fully collectible. No loan loss amount has been recorded to date for this note
receivable from EPV. Amounts due from other related parties at September 30, 2003 and 2004 were $0.1 million. In connection with certain of the acquisitions,
subsidiaries of the Company have entered into a number of related party lease arrangements for facilities. These lease agreements are for periods generally
ranging from three to five years. Related party lease expense for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004 were $4.2 million, $4.2 million and $3.5
million, respectively. Future commitments with respect to these leases are included in the schedule of minimum lease payments in note 7.
 
13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS:
 In November 1998, the Company established the Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan (the “401(k) Plan”). All IES
employees are eligible to participate on the first day of the month subsequent to completing sixty days of service and attaining age twenty-one. Participants
become vested in Company matching contributions following three years of service.
 

Certain subsidiaries of the Company do not participate in the 401(k) Plan, but instead provide various defined contribution savings plans for their
employees (the “Plans”). The Plans cover substantially all full-time
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employees of such subsidiaries. Participants vest at varying rates ranging from full vesting upon participation to those that provide for vesting to begin after three
years of service and are fully vested after eight years. Certain plans provide for a deferral option that allows employees to elect to contribute a portion of their pay
into the plan and provide for a discretionary profit sharing contribution by the individual subsidiary. Generally the subsidiaries match a portion of the amount
deferred by participating employees. Contributions for the profit sharing portion of the Plans are generally at the discretion of the individual subsidiary. The
aggregate contributions by the Company to the 401(k) Plan and the Plans were $3.0 million, $3.0 million and $2.2 million for the years ended September 30,
2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.
 
14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
 The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various legal proceedings that have arisen in the ordinary course of business. While it is not possible to
predict the outcome of such proceedings with certainty and it is possible that the results of legal proceedings may materially adversely affect us, in the opinion of
the Company, all such proceedings are either adequately covered by insurance or, if not so covered, should not ultimately result in any liability which would have
a material adverse effect on the financial position, liquidity or results of operations of the Company. The Company expenses routine legal costs related to such
proceedings as incurred.
 

On August 20, 2004, August 23, 2004, September 10, 2004, September 15, 2004, and October 4, 2004, Corinne Orem, Elaine English, Park Partners, L.P.,
Jack Zimny, and James Elmore, respectively, each filed a putative class action complaint against IES, and certain of our officers and directors, in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of Texas, alleging that the defendants violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
seeking a class determination for purchasers of IES stock between November 10, 2003 and August 13, 2004. The complaints seek unspecified amounts of
compensatory damages, interest and costs, including legal fees. On November 19, 2004, these cases were consolidated. A motion to appoint a lead plaintiff is
pending before the Court, and once an appointment is made plaintiff will have sixty days to file a consolidated amended complaint. Defendants will have sixty
days from the filing of this consolidated amended complaint to respond.
 

On September 3, 2004, Chris Radek filed a shareholder derivative action in the District Court of Harris County, Texas naming Herbert R. Allen, Richard L.
China, William W. Reynolds, Britt Rice, David A. Miller, Ronald P. Badie, Donald P. Hodel, Alan R. Sielbeck, C. Byron Snyder, Donald C. Trauscht, and James
D. Woods as individual defendants and IES as nominal defendant. In this derivative action, the plaintiff makes substantially similar claims as made in the putative
class action complaints, and adds common law claims against the individual defendants. The complaint in the shareholder derivative actions seeks unspecified
amounts of damages, interest and costs, including legal fees. By agreement, the Defendants will not respond to this action until the plaintiff files an amended
petition.
 

The Company intends to vigorously contest these actions. However, because they are at an early stage, it is premature at this time to predict liability or to
estimate the damages, or the range of damages, if any, that we might incur in connection with these actions. An adverse outcome in these actions could have a
material adverse effect on our business, consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
 

Some of the Company’s customers require the Company to post letters of credit as a means of guaranteeing performance under its contracts and ensuring
payment by the Company to subcontractors and vendors. If the customer has reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit, the Company would be
required to reimburse its creditor for the letter of credit. Depending on the circumstances surrounding a reimbursement to its creditor, the Company may have a
charge to earnings in that period. To date the Company has not had a situation
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where a customer has had reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit. At September 30, 2004, $1.9 million of the Company’s outstanding letters of
credit were to collateralize its customers.
 

Some of the underwriters of the Company’s casualty insurance program require it to post letters of credit as collateral. This is common in the insurance
industry. To date the Company has not had a situation where an underwriter has had reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit. At September 30,
2004, $18.9 million of the Company’s outstanding letters of credit were to collateralize its insurance program.
 

Many of the Company’s customers require us to post performance and payment bonds issued by a surety. Those bonds guarantee the customer that the
Company will perform under the terms of a contract and that it will pay its subcontractors and vendors. In the event that the Company fails to perform under a
contract or pay subcontractors and vendors, the customer may demand the surety to pay or perform under the Company’s bond. The Company’s relationship with
its sureties is such that it will indemnify the sureties for any expenses they incur in connection with any of the bonds they issues on the Company’s behalf. To
date, the Company has not incurred significant expenses to indemnify its sureties for expenses they incurred on the Company’s behalf. As of September 30, 2004,
the Company’s cost to complete projects covered by surety bonds was approximately $200.0 million and utilized a combination of cash and letters of credit
totaling $12.5 million to collateralize the Company’s bonding program.
 

The Company has committed to invest up to $5.0 million in EnerTech Capital Partners II L.P. (“EnerTech”). EnerTech is a private equity firm specializing
in investment opportunities emerging from the deregulation and resulting convergence of the energy, utility and telecommunications industries. Through
September 30, 2004, the Company had invested $3.5 million under its commitment to EnerTech.
 

The asset divestiture program involves the sale of substantially all of the assets and liabilities of certain wholly owned subsidiary business units. As part of
the sale, the purchaser assumes all liabilities except those specifically retained by the Company. The transaction does not include sale of the legal entity or
Company subsidiary and as such the Company retains certain legal liabilities. In addition to specifically retained liabilities contingent liabilities exist in the event
the purchaser is unable or unwilling to perform under its assumed liabilities. Those contingent liabilities may include items such as:
 
 •  Joint responsibility for any liability to the surety bonding company if the purchaser fails to perform the work
 
 •  Liability for contracts for work not finished if the contract has not been assigned and a release obtained from the customer
 
 •  Liability on ongoing contractual arrangements such as real property and equipment leases where no assignment and release has been obtained
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15. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited):
 Quarterly financial information for the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2004 are summarized as follows (in thousands, except per share data):
 

   

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003 

 
   (restated)  

   

First
Quarter

  

Second
Quarter

  

Third
Quarter

  

Fourth
Quarter

 
Revenues   $ 348,495  $ 343,089  $ 375,303  $ 380,876 
Gross profit   $ 51,274  $ 49,059  $ 53,373  $ 52,727 
Net income   $ 3,629  $ 3,212  $ 5,260  $ 7,336 
Earnings per share:                  

Basic   $ 0.09  $ 0.08  $ 0.14  $ 0.19 
Diluted   $ 0.09  $ 0.08  $ 0.13  $ 0.19 

   

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

 

   

First
Quarter

  

Second
Quarter

  

Third
Quarter

  

Fourth
Quarter

 
   (restated)   (restated)        
Revenues   $ 360,206  $ 339,995  $ 367,009  $ 356,890 
Gross profit   $ 50,927  $ 43,021  $ 42,798  $ 37,184 
Net income (loss)   $ 6,289  $ 2,472  $ 741  $ (134,366)
Earnings per share:                  

Basic   $ 0.16  $ 0.06  $ 0.02  $ (3.46)
Diluted   $ 0.16  $ 0.06  $ 0.02  $ (3.46)

 
The sum of the individual quarterly earnings per share amounts may not agree with year-to-date earnings per share as each period’s computation is based

on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
 

Included in net loss for the fourth quarter is a $99.8 million goodwill impairment charge.
 
15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
 Discontinued Operations
 Subsequent to September 30, 2004, the Company sold three operating units from its commercial and industrial segment for total proceeds of $11.5 million.
These subsidiaries had a combined revenues of $49.7 million, $46.1 million and $57.7 million, and income from operations of $4.3 million, $3.1 million, and $1.1
million for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2003, and 2004, respectively.
 

Litigation Settlement
 As previously reported pursuant to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 4, 2004, on September 30, 2004, a verdict was rendered by a
jury in a case pending in the 133rd District Court of Harris County, Texas involving a dispute arising from a failed attempted sale of the assets of a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and an employment claim by a former officer of that subsidiary. The jury verdict, if judgment had been entered on that verdict, could
have been for approximately $30,000,000. The Company and its outside counsel believed that the Company would prevail on appeal due to significant legal
issues raised in the trial. However, based on concerns over the potential size of the judgment that might have been entered and its negative
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effect on investors, business partners, customers, banks and vendors, and considering the anticipated costs of appeal, IES determined that it would be in the
stakeholders best interest to settle this matter. The parties settled the lawsuit post-verdict for a cash payment of $8,000,000. This settlement was entered on
December 2, 2004 and the matter was resolved. This amount was accrued at September 30, 2004. The lawsuit was not specifically disclosed in previous filings
with the SEC due to the Company and its outside counsel’s opinion that the underlying case was not well founded and that it was remote that the plaintiffs would
prevail on their causes of action and, if the plaintiffs prevailed, any amounts awarded would have been immaterial.
 

Amendments to the Credit Facility
 On November 18, 2004, the Company obtained a third amendment to the Credit Facility effective on November 24, 2004 upon the initial funding of Senior
Convertible Notes. The amendment modified certain provisions of the Credit Facility to permit the issuance of the Senior Convertible Notes, modified certain
definitions, specified mandatory debt reduction amounts and required a fee.
 

On December 10, 2004, the Company obtained a fourth amendment to the Credit Facility, effective as of June 30, 2004 with respect to specific financial
covenants. The amendment modified the Credit Facility to reduce the total facility commitment to a revolving loan commitment of $82.1 million plus outstanding
term loan commitments, modified definitions, specified mandatory debt reduction amounts by quarter, adjusted and redefined financial covenants on a monthly
basis, released defined collateral under specified conditions, increased pricing, established the borrowing base at 70% of qualifying assets and required a fee.
 

Senior Convertible Notes
 On November 24, 2004, the Company entered into a purchase agreement for a private placement of $36.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 6.5%
Senior Convertible Notes due 2014. Investors in the notes agreed to a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes. The investors have an
option to purchase up to an aggregate of $14 million in additional notes on or before the later to occur of the 90th day after the closing date and the fifth business
day after the Company’s next annual meeting of stockholders. The notes require payment of interest semi-annually in arrears at an annual rate of 6.5%, have a
stated maturity of November 1, 2014, constitute senior unsecured obligations of the Company, are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the Company’s
significant domestic subsidiaries, and are convertible at the option of the holder under certain circumstances into shares of the Company’s common stock at an
initial conversion price of $3.25 per share, subject to adjustment. The total number of shares of common stock deliverable upon conversion of the notes is limited
to approximately 9.4 million shares (including approximately 1.9 million treasury shares), absent receipt of stockholder approval of the issuance of additional
shares. Subject to certain conditions, to the extent that more shares would otherwise be issuable upon conversions of notes, the Company will be required to settle
such conversions in cash by paying the value of the stock into which the notes would otherwise be convertible. The net proceeds from the sale of the notes were
used to prepay a portion of the Company’s senior secured Credit Facility and for general corporate purposes. The notes, the guarantees and the shares of common
stock issuable upon conversion of the notes to be offered have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or any
state securities laws and, unless so registered, the securities may not be offered or sold in the United States except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a
transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws.
 

Posting of Collateral
 Subsequent to September 30, 2004, the Company has posted additional cash collateral with its surety of $10.0 million and issued additional letters of credit
to its insurance underwriters of $12.6 million.
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Item 9A.    Controls and Procedures
 (a) Disclosure controls and procedures. An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management,
including the CEO in his capacity as the CEO and the Interim CFO, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures as of September 30, 2004. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s management, including the CEO in his capacity as the CEO and the Interim CFO,
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective, as of September 30, 2004. Based upon that evaluation, the Company took
the following steps to improve the functioning of its disclosure controls:
 
 

•  Changed the reporting relationships of regional controllers, so that they report directly to IES’ chief accounting officer and have a direct line of
communication to the chief accounting officer and the disclosure committee.

 
 

•  Conducted further follow up of the investigation of accounting matters related to the identified material weaknesses at the direction and under the
supervision of the Audit Committee.

 
 

•  Provided accounting briefings to subsidiary management to clarify and strengthen management’s understanding of the Company’s revenue
recognition policies and the reporting by subsidiaries of revenue and write-downs on contracts.

 
 

•  Expanded the form of certification used for subsidiary presidents and controllers so that exceptions are identified to the chief accounting officer and
the disclosure committee to permit further review and gathering of information and more timely disclosure.

 
The conclusion that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of September 30, 2004, was based on the identification of two

material weaknesses in internal control in August 2004, for which remediation is still ongoing, and follow up items to the external investigation by special
counsel that extended past September 30, 2004.
 

(b) Internal Controls. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, IES conducted an evaluation of the financial results relating to certain projects at one of its
subsidiaries. Following the internal investigation, the Company’s Audit Committee engaged special counsel to conduct an investigation of those matters. The
special investigation has been concluded, and the Company believes that the issues regarding its financial results were not widespread. The issues at one
subsidiary related to (1) a series of large contracts accounted for on a percentage of completion basis in which actual costs projected to be incurred exceeded the
original projected costs, but appropriate adjustments were not reflected, (2) general and administrative costs recorded to a particular contract that did not relate to
that contract and (3) the recognition of revenue related to the recording of incorrect margin on a particular long-term contract. The issues at another subsidiary
related to incorrectly recorded revenues attributable to a large project that were not detected as part of the Company’s normal closing process. The aggregate
amount of the issues at these two subsidiaries is approximately $5.7 million.
 

As a result of the above matters, the independent auditors of IES advised the Company that they would not be able to complete their procedures in
accordance with AU 722, “Interim Financial Information,” on the Company’s third quarter results. They advised IES that until the audit of its fiscal year 2004
financial statements was completed, they would be unable to complete their procedures in accordance with AU 722 on third quarter results. The reasons for the
delay were the two material weaknesses identified by the independent auditors as described below and concerns that the size of the adjustments taken for the
items identified above, coupled with any other adjustments that may have been identified in the course of the audit, could have resulted in a requirement to restate
prior periods.
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In response to the issues identified above, by letter dated August 12, 2004, Ernst & Young, IES’ independent auditors, issued a letter to IES advising the
Company that they had identified two deficiencies in the design of internal controls that are material weaknesses:
 

 
•  First, at one subsidiary, certain administrative costs were inappropriately recorded as additional contract costs on a large cost-plus contract, which

resulted in the deferral of expenses and overstatement of revenues for the first quarter of fiscal 2002. Additionally, the subsidiary recorded margin on
that same contract of up to 8% when the contract only allowed for costs plus a maximum of 6%.

 

 
•  Second, the Company recorded an additional $4.3 million in adjustments to contract cost, reversal of revenue and other issues. The auditors

concluded that the Company’s lack of timely updating of estimated costs to complete contracts and lack of monitoring revenue recognition policies
was a deficiency and material weakness.

 
To address the issues described above, IES’ management made the policy, training, controls and organizational changes described below:
 
 •  IES is reviewing its internal controls by to improve the functioning of internal controls and address the potential deficiencies and weaknesses.
 
 

•  The number of reporting regions was reduced, and a new “rapid response” team was created to step in and assist subsidiaries experiencing difficulties
to accelerate corrective measures.

 
 •  Implementation of new and significantly expanded training programs for employees responsible for financial reporting.
 
 •  The form of certification used for subsidiary presidents and controllers was revised and expanded.
 
 

•  Reporting relationships were changed so that regional controllers report directly to IES’ chief accounting officer and have a direct line of
communication to the chief accounting officer.

 

 
•  A centralized accounting system has been implemented at 90 percent of the Company’s subsidiaries as of December 2004. This accounting system

permits remote access and increased oversight of the accounting records at each subsidiary location. The increased automation of the revenue
reporting process has strengthened the Company’s internal controls.

 
 

•  IES is in the process of implementing policies to require additional support in narrative or other form to document probable collection of larger aged
accounts receivable. Under the revised policy, evidence required to recognize revenue will be a written or oral change order or notice to proceed.

 
 

•  IES is in the process of clarifying and improving its accounting policies, including its policies regarding revenue recognition, ethics compliance and
contract documentation, and providing the policies in language and format that are more readily usable.

 
 

•  IES increased its regional and corporate monitoring procedures including consolidated five quarter fade reviews, troubled contract reviews, revenues
at risk analysis and increased involvement from regional and corporate accounting in significant judgments.

 
 

•  IES will continue to leverage the capabilities of its Forefront reporting system, improve the documentation of the cost to complete calculation and
formalize the process for monthly work in process review meetings.

 
At September 30, 2004, the Company does not believe that the material weakness relating to the timely updating of estimated costs to complete contracts

has been remediated. The company expects that further training, process improvement, and monitoring of compliance with the Company’s revenue recognition
policies is required to fully remediate this material weakness. The Company’s auditors concur that these steps are required to fully remediate the material
weakness and include their suggestions. IES believes these changes allow it to better enforce controls and detect potential issues more quickly in the future.
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Subsequent to September 30, 2004, the Company received a letter from its external auditors identifying matters involving internal control over financial
reporting and its operation that they considered to be a material weakness. This weakness was identified upon the Company filing an amended Form 10-Q to
correct a material error in the Company’s segment reporting footnote. The material weakness relates to the operation of the Company’s financial reporting process
including an under resourced accounting staff which prevents adequate review and supervision, and the lack of certain management review during the financial
reporting process.
 

The Company’s management is taking the following steps to remediate the material weakness:
 
 

•  The Company recently hired a new senior accountant that will provide supervisory accounting staff the ability to increase review and supervision
within the accounting department.

 
 •  The Company has in place its Financial Reporting Manager who was unavailable for the December 2004 close.
 
 •  The Company is in the process of filling its vacant Chief Accounting Officer position.
 
 

•  The Company has also reinforced a more rigorous review of public filings by other areas of management, including legal, operations and other
executives.

 
The Company believes the additional staff and processes identified above will serve to remediate the identified material weakness.
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PART IV
 
Item 15.    Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
 (a) Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Financial Statement Schedules and Exhibits.
 See Index to Financial Statements under Item 8 of this report.
 

(b) Exhibits.
 3.1

  

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amended. (Incorporated by reference to 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-38715) of the Company)

3.2  Bylaws, as amended (Incorporated by reference to 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-65160) of the Company)

4.1
  

Specimen Common Stock Certificate. (Incorporated by reference to 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-38715) of the
Company)

4.2

  

Indenture, dated January 28, 1999, by and among Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and the subsidiaries named therein and State Street Bank and
Trust Company covering up to $150,000,000 9 3/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2009. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Post-
Effective Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-50031) of the Company)

4.3
  

Form of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 9 3/8% Senior Subordinated Note due 2009 (Series A) and (Series B). (Included in Exhibit A to Exhibit
4.2 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-50031) of the Company)

4.4

  

Indenture, dated May 29, 2001, by and among Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and the subsidiaries named therein and State Street Bank and
Trust Company covering up to $125,000,000 9 3/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2009. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Registration
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-65160) of the Company)

4.5
  

Form of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 9 3/8% Senior Subordinated Note due 2009 (Series C) and (Series D). (Included in Exhibit A to Exhibit
4.3 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-65160) of the Company)

4.6

  

Indenture, dated November 24, 2004, among the Company, the subsidiaries of the Company named therein, each a Guarantor, and The Bank Of
New York, a New York Banking Corporation, as Trustee, for the benefit of the holders of the Company’s Series A 6.5% Senior Convertible Notes
Due 2014 and Series B 6.5% Senior Convertible Notes Due 2014. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated November 24, 2004)

4.7

  

Registration Rights Agreement, dated November 24, 2004, by and among the Company, the parties set forth on Schedule I thereto, each a
Purchaser, and the subsidiaries of the Company set forth on Schedule II thereto, each a Guarantor, for the benefit of the holders of the Company’s
Series A 6.5% Senior Convertible Notes Due 2014 and Series B 6.5% Senior Convertible Notes Due 2014. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 24, 2004)

*10.1
  

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and H. Roddy Allen entered into effect as of January 30, 2003
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2003)

*10.2
  

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Richard L. China entered into effective as of August 12, 2003
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2003)
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*10.3
  

Form of Resignation Contract Amendment between the Company and Richard L. China dated September 28, 2004 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

*10.4
  

Form of Mutual Settlement Agreement and Release between the Company and Richard L. China dated November 9, 2004 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

*10.5
  

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Daniel Petro effective as of January 26, 2003 (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

*10.6
  

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Miles Dickinson effective May 13, 2004 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

*10.7
  

Form of Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Miles Dickinson effective December 6, 2004
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

*10.8
  

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Robert Stalvey effective January 27, 2003 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

10.9
  

Form of Officer and Director Indemnification Agreement. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Annual report on Form
10-K for the year ended September 30, 2002)

10.10
  

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 1997 Stock Plan, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2001)

10.11
  

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 1997 Directors’ Stock Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2000)

10.12
  

Form of Stock Option Agreement for non-qualified Stock Options granted pursuant to the 1997 Directors Stock Plan (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

10.13
  

Form of Stock Option Agreement for non-qualified Stock Options granted pursuant to the 1997 Stock Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.13 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

10.14
  

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 1999 Incentive Compensation Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2000)

10.15
  

Form of Stock Option Agreement for non-qualified Stock Options granted pursuant to the 1999 Incentive Compensation Plan (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

10.16
  

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement granted pursuant to the 1999 Incentive Compensation Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

10.17

  

Credit Facility dated February 27, 2004, among the Company, as borrower, the Financial institutions named therein, as banks, U.S. Bank National
Association as syndication agent, Bank of Scotland as managing agent, La Salle Bank National Association as documentation agent and Bank
One, NA as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended March 31, 2004)
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10.18

  

Agreement and Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of June 30, 2004, among the financial institutions named therein, the Company, as
borrower, and Bank One, NA, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated August 17, 2004)

10.19

  

Agreement and Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of August 16, 2004 among the financial institutions named therein, the
Company, as borrower, and Bank One, NA, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated September 1, 2004)

10.20

  

Agreement and Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of November 18, 2004 among the financial Institutions named therein, the
Company, as borrower, and Bank One, NA, as administrative agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 22, 2004)

10.21

  

Purchase Agreement, dated November 22, 2004, among the Company and the Purchasers named therein and Guarantors named therein (including
form of Indenture and form of Registration Rights Agreement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated November 22, 2004)

10.22

  

Agreement and Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of December 10, 2004 among the financial institutions named therein, the
Company, as borrower, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (successor by merger to Bank One, NA), as administrative agent. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)

12
  

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 12 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 2004)

16.1
  

Letter of Arthur Andersen LLP regarding a change in certifying accountant. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 011-13783) filed June 10, 2002)

21.1
  

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 2004)

23.1  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP(1)

24
  

Powers of Attorney (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 23.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
2004)

31.1  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Herbert R. Allen, Chief Executive Officer(1)

31.2  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of David A. Miller, Chief Financial Officer(1)

32.1  Section 1350 Certification of Herbert R. Allen, Chief Executive Officer(1)

32.2  Section 1350 Certification of David A. Miller, Chief Financial Officer(1)

 * These exhibits relate to management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.
(1) Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on April 11, 2005.
 

INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.

By:  /S/    DAVID A. MILLER          
 

 

David A. Miller
Senior Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 23.1

 
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Forms S-8 and S-4 File Nos. 333-67113, 333-45447, 333-45449, 333-91041, 333-
31608, 333-32624, 333-50031, 333-62636, 333-68274, and 333-112282) of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. of our report dated December 8, 2004, except for
Notes 1 and 7, as to which the date is December 13, 2004 and except for Notes 3 and 15, as to which the date is March 28, 2005, with respect to the consolidated
financial statements of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K/A) for the year ended September 30, 2004.
 

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
 
Houston, Texas
April 11, 2005



Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATION
 
I, Herbert R. Allen, certify that:
 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.;
 2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

 4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:

 

 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

 
 

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an quarterly report) that has materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and;

 5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 
 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 Date: April 11, 2005
 

/s/ Herbert R. Allen

Herbert R. Allen
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
 

CERTIFICATION
 
I, David A. Miller, certify that:
 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.;
 2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

 4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:

 

 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

 
 

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an quarterly report) that has materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and;

 5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 
 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 
Date: April 11, 2005
 

/s/ David A. Miller

David A. Miller
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
In connection with this Annual Report of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K/A for the period ending September 30, 2004

(the “Report”), I, Herbert R. Allen, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant to ss. 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.
 
 
 

/s/ Herbert R. Allen

Herbert R. Allen
Chief Executive Officer

 
April 11, 2005



Exhibit 32.2
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
In connection with this Annual Report of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K/A for the period ending September 30, 2004

(the “Report”), I, David A. Miller, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant to ss. 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.
 
 
 

/s/ David A. Miller

David A. Miller
Chief Financial Officer

 
April 11, 2005


